
City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for October 13, 2016 
7:30 p.m., at 710 Mill Bay Road, Assembly Chambers (Room 232) 
 
 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call 
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. Previous Minutes 

Approval of Minutes of the September 22, 2016, Regular Council Meeting ..................................1 
 
III. Persons to Be Heard 

a. Proclamation: Filipino American National History Month ...............................................10 
b. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 

 
IV. Unfinished Business 

a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1359, Adopting Kodiak City Code 
8.96.010, Discharge of Firearms and Other Dangerous Weapons Prohibited; Exceptions, 
and Amending Kodiak City Code 1.12.040, Disposition of Offenses—Fine Schedule, to 
Enact a Prohibition on Discharging Firearms in the City Subject to Certain Exceptions 
and a Penalty for Its Violation ...........................................................................................14 

 
V. New Business 

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1360, Amending Kodiak City Code 3.12.020, Limitation 
on City Manager’s Authority; Kodiak City Code 3.12.030, Open Market Procedures; 
Kodiak City Code 3.12.040, Advertising for Bids; and Kodiak City Code 3.12.090, 
Purchase, Contract, or Sale Valid When—Prohibited When; to Increase the Limit on the 
City Manager’s Contracting Authority From $15,000 to $35,000 and to Increase the 
Limit on Use of Open Market Contracting Procedures to $50,000 ...................................20 

b. Resolution No. 2016–35, Accepting Funding From the State of Alaska Harbor Facilities 
Grant Program ....................................................................................................................24 

c. Resolution No. 2016–36, Accepting a Code Blue Phase 16 Grant From the Southern 
Region EMS Council for Purchase of an Ambulance and Transferring $20,010 From the 
FY2017 General Fund Balance to the General Capital Project Fund - Ambulance 
Replacement Project No. 4047 ..........................................................................................28 

d. Resolution No. 2016–37, Authorizing the Kodiak Hockey League to Sell Concessions 
and Offer Skate Sharpening to the Community at Baranof Park .......................................34 

e. Resolution No. 2016–38, Authorizing Payment for Two Additional Fiscal Year 2017 
Nonprofit Organization Grants ..........................................................................................40 

f. Resolution No. 2016–39, Appropriating $30,550 From the Water Capital Improvement 
Unassigned Fund Balance to the UV Water Treatment Facility Project No.03-14/7023 
and Authorizing a Professional Services Contract for Updating the UV Reactors to the 
2012 Validation Status and Completing New Programming of the Operating System .....70 

g. Authorization of Up Fitting of Recently Purchased Police Department Vehicles.............84 
h. Authorization of the First Amendment to Professional Services Contract With Windward 

Project Solutions LLC for Design-Build Development for the Channel Transient Float 
Replacement Project No. 8525 ..........................................................................................94 

i. Amendment of the Previously Adopted Motion at the September 22, 2016, Regular 
Meeting to Cancel Certain October, November, and December Regular Meetings and 
Schedule Special Meetings ..............................................................................................102 



j. Certification of Election ...................................................................................................104 
 
VI. Staff Reports 

a. City Manager 
b. City Clerk 

 
VII. Mayor’s Comments 
 

VIII. Council Comments 
 
IX. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 

 
X. Oath of Office.........................................................................................................................108  

 
XI. Adjournment 
 



  8135 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 
HELD THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS 
 
 
I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Deputy Mayor Richard H. Walker called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Councilmembers 
Laura B. Arboleda, Randall C. Bishop, Charles E. Davidson, Gabriel T. Saravia, and John B. 
Whiddon were present and constituted a quorum. Mayor Pat Branson was absent. City Manager 
Aimée Kniaziowski, Deputy City Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson, and Assistant Clerk Nanci 
Sharratt were also present. 
 
Salvation Army Major Dave Davis gave the invocation, and the Pledge of Allegiance was recit-
ed. 
 

II. PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve the minutes of the September 8, 2016, special 
meeting and the September 8, 2016, regular meeting as presented. 
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and 
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 
III. PERSONS TO BE HEARD 
 

a. Public Comments 
 

Judi Kidder congratulated Parks and Recreation for the work done at the Otmeloi Park. She 
thanked the City for rescinding the ordinance that prohibited the location of mobile homes within 
the City, allowing her to relocate her home to Baranof Street. She stated the relocation of her 
mobile home has been costly and difficult. She extended her appreciation to Public Works for the 
outstanding job on getting the sewer and water lines in on the property. She thanked the Finance 
Director and the Deputy City Manager for assisting with a payment plan. She advocated for af-
fordable housing within the community and forward planning within the leadership.  

 
IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution No. 2016–30(SUB), Authorizing the Issuance of a Series of Boat Lift Special 
Facility Revenue Refunding Bonds in the Principal Amount of Not to Exceed $3,900,000 
to Refund Certain Outstanding Boat Lift Special Facility Revenue Bonds of the City, 
Fixing Certain Details of Such Bonds and Authorizing Their Sale 

 
Deputy Mayor Walker read Resolution No. 2016–30(SUB) by title. Resolution No. 2016–
30(SUB) authorizes the City Manager to proceed with bond refunding for the 2007 Harbor Rev-
enue Bonds in an amount not to exceed $3,900,000. The Alaska Municipal Bond Bank (AMMB) 
is issuing General Obligation and Refunding Bonds, 2016 Series Three and Series Four Bonds. A 
portion of the proceeds of the 2016 Series Three and Series Four Bonds is being used to refund 

1



 SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 8136 
 

and redeem certain outstanding bonds of the Bond Bank, including the 2007 Series Five Boat 
Lift Revenue Bonds issued by the City of Kodiak. Depending on the market conditions on the 
pricing date and resulting savings available as a result of the refunding, the Bond Bank may re-
fund all or none of the refunding candidates. A market analysis was performed on August 10, 
2016, to determine the potential savings to the City, which could be as much as $465,071 over 
the term of the bonds. 
 
Councilmember Davidson MOVED to amend by substituting Resolution No. 2016–30(SUB) for 
Resolution No. 2016–30. 

 
The roll call vote on the substitution amendment was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Da-
vidson, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 
 
The roll call vote on the main motion as amended was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Da-
vidson, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 
b. Resolution No. 2016–31(SUB), Authorizing the Issuance of a Series of Boat Lift Special 

Facility Revenue Refunding Bonds in the Principal Amount of Not to Exceed $1,100,000 
to Refund Certain Outstanding Boat Lift Special Facility Revenue Bonds of the City, 
Fixing Certain Details of Such Bonds and Authorizing Their Sale 

 
Deputy Mayor Walker read Resolution No. 2016-31(SUB) by title. Resolution No. 2016–
31(SUB) authorizes the City Manager to proceed with bond refunding for the 2007 Harbor Rev-
enue Bonds not to exceed $1,100,000. The Alaska Municipal Bond Bank is issuing General Ob-
ligation and Refunding Bonds, 2016 Series Three and Series Four Bonds. A portion of the 
proceeds of the 2016 Series Three and Series Four Bonds is being used to refund and redeem 
certain outstanding bonds of the Bond Bank, including the 2009 Series One Boat Lift Revenue 
Bonds issued by the City of Kodiak. Depending on the market conditions on the pricing date and 
resulting savings available as a result of the refunding, the Bond Bank may refund all or none of 
the refunding candidates. A market analysis was performed on August 10, 2016, to determine the 
potential savings to the City, which could be as much as $157,405 over the term of the bonds. 
 
Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to amend by substituting Resolution No. 2016–31(SUB) for 
Resolution No. 2016–31. 
 
The roll call vote on the substitution amendment was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Da-
vidson, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 
 
The roll call vote on the main motion as amended was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Da-
vidson, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 
 
c. Resolution No. 2016–32(SUB), Authorizing the Issuance of a Series of Harbor Revenue 

Refunding Bonds in the Principal Amount of Not to Exceed $2,100,000 to Refund Cer-
tain Outstanding Harbor Revenue Bonds of the City, Fixing Certain Details of Such 
Bonds and Authorizing Their Sale 

 
Deputy Mayor Walker read Resolution No. 2016-32(SUB) by title. Resolution No. 2016–
32(SUB) authorizes the City Manager to proceed with bond refunding for the 2007 Harbor Rev-

2



 SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 8137 
 

enue Bonds in an amount not to exceed $2,100,000. The Alaska Municipal Bond Bank is issuing 
General Obligation and Refunding Bonds, 2016 Series Three and Series Four Bonds. A portion 
of the proceeds of the 2016 Series Three and Series Four Bonds is being used to refund and re-
deem certain outstanding bonds of the Bond Bank, including the 2007 Series Five Boat Harbor 
Revenue Bonds issued by the City of Kodiak. Depending on the market conditions on the pricing 
date and resulting savings available as a result of the refunding, the Bond Bank may refund all or 
none of the refunding candidates. A market analysis was performed on August 10, 2016, to de-
termine the potential savings to the City, which could be as much as $226,199 over the term of 
the bonds. 
 
Councilmember Arboleda MOVED to amend by substituting Resolution No. 2016–32(SUB) for 
Resolution No. 2016–32. 
 
The roll call vote on the substitution amendment was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Da-
vidson, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 
 
The roll call vote on the main motion as amended was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Da-
vidson, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1359, Adopting Kodiak City Code 8.96.010, Discharge of 
Firearms and Other Dangerous Weapons Prohibited; Exceptions, and Amending Kodi-
ak City Code 1.12.040, Disposition of Offenses—Fine Schedule, to Enact a Prohibition 
on Discharging Firearms in the City Subject to Certain Exceptions and a Penalty for Its 
Violation 

 
Deputy Mayor Walker read Ordinance No. 1359 by title. This ordinance is intended to restrict 
the discharge of firearms and other dangerous weapons within the City of Kodiak jurisdiction. 
Alaska Statute 29.35.145 (b) (2) authorizes a municipality to enact and enforce an ordinance re-
stricting discharge of firearms.  
 
Councilmember Bishop MOVED to pass Ordinance No. 1359 in the first reading and advance to 
second reading and public hearing at the next special or regular meeting. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and 
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 
b. Resolution No. 2016–34, Accepting a FY2016 State Homeland Security Program Grant 
 
Deputy Mayor Walker read Resolution No. 2016–34 by title. The City has been awarded a State 
Homeland Security Program Grant to provide funding for approved equipment purchases. This 
grant, State Grant No. 20SHSP-GY16, will repay costs associated with the purchase of approved 
equipment used to upgrade the City of Kodiak Emergency Operations Center. 
 
Councilmember Arboleda MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2016–34. 
 

3



 SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 8138 
 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and 
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 
c. Authorization of a Professional Services Contract for Design of Wastewater Treatment 

Plant Centrifuge Project, Project No. 17-03/7519 
 
The City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) produces approximately 2,000 wet tons of bio-
solids annually. The sludge is run through an Andritz belt filter press (belt press), which results 
in the bio-solids product. The belt press is 24 years old and has been assessed several times in the 
last five years. The evaluations show that the belt press is in need of some significant rebuilding 
if it is to remain the only means of de-watering sludge. With the City operating the composting 
facility and the need to rebuild the belt press within a few years, we requested a proposal from 
CH2M for design and bid documents for a centrifuge dewatering system. 
 
Councilmember Arboleda MOVED to authorize the professional services contract with CH2M 
for design and bidding, to install a centrifuge for de-watering sludge with funds coming from the 
Sewer Capital Improvement Fund, WWTP Centrifuge Project, Project No. 17-03/7519 in the 
amount of $161,000 and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the 
City. 
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and 
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 
 
d. Authorization of Agreement for Parks and Recreation Officiating Services 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department offers a variety of sporting programs that require sport of-
ficials. These programs include basketball (youth and adult), volleyball, soccer, and softball. The 
Department established an approved budget based on average cost per program from the last five 
years. Contracting of services is new to the Department and these officiating services are critical 
to the sports as well as maintaining cost efficiency. Kodiak Island Recreational Referee Associa-
tion (KIRRA) provided these services last season. 
 
Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to authorize the Memorandum of Agreement No. 225117 
with Kodiak Island Recreational Referee Association in the amount not to exceed $35,000 with 
funds coming from the Parks & Recreation-Administration-Officiating Services line item and au-
thorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the City. 
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and 
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 
e. Authorization of Purchase of Pumps, Motors and Control Panel for the Trident Basin 

Lift Station 
 
There are two sanitary sewer lift stations located in Trident Basin. This spring, the smaller sta-
tion had an electrical failure. During efforts to repair the station, it was determined that the exist-
ing station was not appropriately designed for the environment where it was installed. The only 
solution to correct the failure is to replace the pumps and control panel with an approved system 
for use in a hazardous environment. We requested a quote from Alaska Pump & Supply Inc. be-

4



 SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 8139 
 

cause of the compatibility with an existing lift station on Spruce Cape Natives of Kodiak Subdi-
vision. 
 
Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize the purchase of the pumps, motors and control 
panel for the Trident Basin lift station from Alaska Pump & Supply Inc. in the amount of 
$15,132 with funds coming from the Sewer Utility Fund, wastewater treatment repair and 
maintenance account and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the 
City. 
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and 
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 
 
f. Authorization of Sole Source Purchase of Replacement ClorTec Unit at the Water 

Treatment Plant 
 
As a Surface Water System that is unfiltered, we are required by Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) and Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) regulation to 
use two disinfectants. We use sodium hypochlorite (chlorine) and Ultra Violet (UV) as our two 
disinfectants. The sodium hypochlorite is generated on site by two independent ClorTec systems 
that create a 0.08 percent chlorine solution. The ClorTec units consist of three main components; 
the rectifier, control panel and cells. This purchase will replace one entire unit. De Nora Water 
Technologies is the current manufacture of the ClorTec systems. 
 
Councilmember Bishop MOVED to authorize the sole source purchase of replacement ClorTec 
CT 150 system unit from De Nora Water Technologies in the amount of $80,132.29 with funds 
coming from the Water Utility, Water Treatment machinery and equipment account and author-
ize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the City. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and 
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 
g. Authorization of Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement with Sol-

stice Alaska Consulting Inc. to Assist in Permitting for the Channel Transient Float 
Replacement Project No. 8525 

 
It is recommended that Council authorize Amendment No. 2 to the professional service agree-
ment with Solstice Alaska Consulting Inc. to prepare the necessary documents to obtain permit-
ting for the Channel Transient Float Replacement Project in the amount of $17,220. 
 
Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize Amendment No. 2 to the professional service 
agreement with Solstice Alaska Consulting Inc., in the amount of $17,220 with funds from the 
Harbor Enterprise Fund, Capital Project No. 8525 and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
documents on behalf of the City. 
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and 
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

5



 SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 8140 
 

h. Authorization to Cancel the October 27, November 10, November 24, and December 22, 
2016, Regular Meetings, Schedule a Special Meeting for November 3, 2016, and Author-
ize the City Manager to Schedule Additional Special Meetings if Needed 

 
The regularly scheduled Council meetings for October, November, and December may be can-
celled to reflect the holidays and elected official and staff travel schedules. Elected Officials and 
staff attend the winter Annual Alaska Municipal League Conference November 14 through No-
vember 18. Thanksgiving is on November 24, and December 22 is entering into the Christmas 
holiday weekend; these are both regular meeting days. Staff discussed the meeting schedule with 
the Council at the September 6, 2016, work session, and Council recommended cancelling the 
October 27, November 10, November 24, and December 22, 2016, regular meetings and schedul-
ing a special meeting for November 3, 2016, and authorizing the City Manager to schedule addi-
tional special meetings if needed. 
 
Councilmember Davidson MOVED to cancel the October 27, November 10, November 24, and 
December 22, 2016, regular meetings and schedule a special meeting for November 3, 2016, and 
authorize the City Manager to schedule additional special meetings if needed. 
 
Councilmember Whiddon inquired if six weeks would be between meetings if the October 27, 
November 10, and the November 24, 2016, meetings were cancelled. 
 
City Manager Kniaziowski shared it would be a little over one month between the November 3, 
2016, and the first meeting in December. She shared that nothing critical is scheduled in the next 
couple of months as most projects are in the final stages. 
 
Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to amend by striking November 10 and December 22, 2016. 
 
A discussion ensued. 
 
Councilmember Davidson shared that he doesn’t see a problem with leaving the proposed mo-
tion as it stands. He stated that we would have adequate time to reschedule a meeting if needed. 
He shared that the December 22, 2016, meeting is close to a major holiday.  
 
Councilmember Whiddon stated that he agreed with Councilmember Davidson. He asked to 
withdraw his amendment. There was Council consensus for Councilmember Whiddon to with-
draw his amendment. 
 
The roll call vote on the main motion was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Davidson, 
Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 
VI. STAFF REPORTS 

 
a. City Manager 
 
Manager Kniaziowski provided an update on the old library demolition project. She said bid 
documents are in the final review stage and will go out at the end of this month for the 30 day 
period. She said the old library demolition project award is scheduled for the December meeting. 
She shared that the old crane on Pier III is in the process of being taken down, piece by piece. 

6



 SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 8141 
 

She shared an update on the two downtown lift stations. She stated that two nights of paving are 
left on the Mill Bay Road project. She shared that they will get a quote for the new road striping, 
and Public Works will handle the traffic to allow for savings on that portion of the project. She 
said the new compost building is almost near completion. She stated that the Pier III pavement is 
complete, which officially wraps up the project. She gave an update on Pier I and shared that the 
new Pier I Ferry Terminal agreement reached the required waiting period and has been forward-
ed to the State for signature. She shared that once the punch list is handled, the agreement is 
complete, and all details finalized then the dock will be transferred back to the City. She shared 
that the Channel Transient Float is moving forward with a different kind of grant that will be 
brought back to the Council at the October meeting. She provided an update on the continuing 
work on the public showers at the Harbormaster building with the hazardous material been dealt 
with and a RFP for the design build will go out. She shared that the seafood processers plan on 
attending the October 11 work session to discuss the water utility rate concerns. She gave a re-
minder about the City Park’s fall/winter schedule of 5 a.m. to 10 p.m. She shared that she will be 
out for about a week in October, and that the Deputy City Manager will be acting City Manager 
in her absence. 
 
b. City Clerk 
 
Deputy City Clerk Shuravloff-Nelson informed the public of the next scheduled joint work ses-
sion, the Council work session, and the regular meeting. She shared that the next Fisheries Work 
Group meeting is on September 29, 2016. She shared that absentee voting for City residents is 
available in the City Clerk’s Office. She clarified that Resolution 2016-31(SUB) was for $1.1 
million as it may have been verbally misstated earlier during the meeting.  
 

VII. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
Deputy Mayor Walker is pleased that the City is getting the new centrifuge; it will be quicker 
and more efficient. He thanked all shop leaders and employees for their work, sharing many pro-
jects are coming to completion and other projects still ongoing. He appreciated hearing the up-
date on the old library building. He emphasized that Pier III is finally complete. He expressed 
that the public showers going in downtown at the Harbormaster building will be helpful to many 
people. He thanked his fellow Councilmembers for the work they do and their time. 
 

VIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Councilmember Bishop gave an update on the City Marijuana Advisory Committee stating all 
four license areas including: cultivation; manufacturing; testing; and retail have been addressed 
during meetings. He shared that there is still gray area between State and Federal laws, and the 
City will have to wait and see what happens. He stated that the Committee will be making rec-
ommendations to the Council on the marijuana industry. He reminded people to vote at the Oc-
tober 4, 2016, election stating every vote counts. 
 
Councilmember Saravia thanked Councilmember Whiddon for his work regarding the ferry sys-
tem. He welcomed Councilmember Davidson back from his travels and he thanked staff for all 
their work. 
 

7



 SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 8142 
 

Councilmember Whiddon complimented Councilmembers Arboleda and Bishop for their work 
on the KIB Marijuana Task Force and the City Marijuana Advisory Committee; he said it is an 
important undertaking. He commented on his travels through Wrangell and complimented their 
boatyard infrastructure. He shared that tremendous work is being done within the City to deal 
with the aging infrastructure, which is a multi-million dollar investment. He shared his support 
that the ordinance regarding mobile home locations gave people an opportunity to find a place to 
live within the City and welcomed Ms. Kidder to the neighborhood. 
 
Councilmember Arboleda thanked Brechan for their work on Mill Bay Road and managing the 
busy traffic. She commented that there is a movement to utilize local goods by organizations in 
town and shared that she is excited to see the community coming together to use what the town 
has to offer. She shared that the Salmon Life Social last weekend was successful and had beauti-
ful weather. She thanked staff for taking care of employees, the town, and being great leaders. 
 
Councilmember Davidson thanked the Marijuana Advisory Committee for their commitment as 
it is an important issue. He thanked the finance staff and Finance Director Mayes for saving 
money through bond refunding. He encouraged everyone to vote and beat the previous election 
turnout rate. He clarified when he called into the Borough Assembly meeting he used the term 
“little” people he said he was referring to the students. He said he was talking about making a na-
ture path next to the grade school on the empty Baranof lots during the meeting.  
 

IX. AUDIENCE COMMENTS 
 
None 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and 
Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:46 p.m. 
 

 
  CITY OF KODIAK 

 
 
 

  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

  

CITY CLERK   
 
 
Minutes Approved:  

8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PERSONS TO BE HEARD 

9



 
OCTOBER 13, 2016 

Agenda Item III. a. Memo Page 1 of 1 
 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Date: October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: III. a. Proclamation: Filipino American National History Month 

 
SUMMARY: This proclamation urges all citizens to celebrate the rich history and contributions of 
Filipino Americans in Kodiak. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Attachment A: Proclamation: Declaring Filipino American National History Month 

10



PROCLAMATION 

Declaring Filipino American 
National History Month 

 WHEREAS, Filipino presence in the United States has been documented 
back to 1587; and 

 WHEREAS, the Filipino American National Historical Society continues 
to promote the study of Filipino American history and culture; and 

 WHEREAS, Filipino Americans play an important role in the history of 
Kodiak; and 

 WHEREAS, positive role models are important in teaching Filipino 
American youth the importance of cultural education, ethnicity, and the 
values of their legacy; and 

 WHEREAS, Kodiak is fortunate to count among its population citizens 
of Filipino descent who contribute to Kodiak’s economy and society through 
their commitment to their professions, commerce, family, and the arts. 

 NOW THEREFORE I, Pat Branson, Mayor of the City of Kodiak, do 
hereby proclaim October 2016, as: 

Filipino American National History Month 

in Kodiak and urge all citizens to celebrate the rich history and contributions 
of Filipino Americans in Kodiak. 

Dated this 13th day of October 2016.
City of Kodiak 

   Pat Branson, Mayor 

Attachment A

11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

13



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 
From: Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 
Thro: Mike Tvenge, Deputy City Manager � 
Date: October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: IV. a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1359, Adopting Kodiak
City Code 8.96.010, Discharge of Firearms and Other Dangerous Weapons 
Prohibited; Exceptions, and Amending Kodiak City Code 1.12.040, 
Disposition of Offenses-Fine Schedule, to Enact a Prohibition on 
Discharging Firearms in the City Subject to Certain Exceptions and a 
Penalty for Its Violation 

SUMMARY: This ordinance (Attachment A) is intended to restrict the discharge of firearms and other 
dangerous weapons within the City of Kodiak jurisdiction. Alaska Statute 29.35.145 (b) (2) authorizes a 
municipality to enact and enforce an ordinance restricting discharge of firearms. Staff recommends 
Council adopt Ordinance No. 1359 after the public hearing. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council repealed a discharge of firearms ordinance more than a 
decade ago. Discussions to bring back a firearms ordinance have occurred during previous Council work 
sessions. Council reviewed the ordinance at the September 20, 2016, work session and passed Ordinance 
No. 1359 in the first reading on September 22, 2016. 

BACKGROUND: During hunting season August 2015, a deer was killed with a firearm on Near Island 
(within City jurisdiction). Questions arose whether this was legal and safe. It was researched and 
discovered there is no City restriction to hunt deer or other big game within the Kodiak City limits. 

DISCUSSION: There has not been a recent accident or injury relating to rightful discharge of a firearm; 
however, this situation is particularly dangerous within a densely populated area also common to hikers 
and businesses. As the City moves forward to adopting a Land Use Plan for Near Island, it would seem 
prudent to enact a no "hunting" policy in and amongst businesses, boaters, hikers, air taxi's, housing, 
and other development. Therefore, it is in the best interest of the City and its residents to restrict the use 
of firearms and dangerous weapons within City limits. This ordinance does not prohibit the discharge of 
firearms or other weapons for the lawful protection of persons or property, or preventing crime, or use 
on an established firing range. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1) Adopt Ordinance No. 1359, which is recommend by staff.
2) Consider not adopting Ordinance No. 1359, which is not recommended by staff.

OCTOBER 13, 2016 

Agenda Item IV. a. Memo Page 1 of2 

14



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: There may be the need to post signage to notify the public of the 
firearm restriction. Cost for signage has not been determined. 

LEGAL: A legal opinion has been researched and this ordinance was drafted by the law firm of Birch 
Horton Bittner and Cherot. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt this ordinance to protect individuals 
and property from accidental injury by discharge of a firearm or dangerous weapon in a high density 
environment. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: I recommend Council adopt this ordinance to protect the safety 
of all individuals in the community. When you think of all the activity that occurs within a mile radius of 
town, particularly Near Island, we should restrict the discharge of firearms within the City limits. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1359 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1359. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item IV. a. Memo Page 2 of2 

15



CITY OF KODIAK 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1359 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK ADOPTING 
KODIAK CITY CODE 8.96.010, DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS AND OTHER 
DANGEROUS WEAPONS PROIDBITED; EXCEPTIONS, AND AMENDING KODIAK 
CITY CODE 1.12.040, DISPOSITION OF OFFENSES-FINE SCHEDULE, TO ENACT 
A PROIDBITION ON DISCHARGING FIREARMS IN THE CITY SUBJECT TO 
CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS AND A PENALTY FOR ITS VIOLATION 

WHEREAS, AS 29.35.145(b)(2) authorizes a municipality to enact and enforce 
ordinances restricting the discharge of firearms in any portion of its jurisdiction where there is a 
reasonable likelihood that people, domestic animals or property will be jeopardized; and 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that there is a reasonable likelihood that people, domestic 
animals or property will be jeopardized by the discharge of firearms and other dangerous 
weapons anywhere within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City and its residents to 
permit the discharge of firearms and other dangerous weapons in the City for the protection of 
persons and property, and for other specified purposes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
as follows: 

Section 1: Kodiak City Code 8.96.010, Discharge of firearms and other dangerous 
weapons prohibited; Exceptions, is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

8.96.010 Discharge of firearms and other dangerous weapons prohibited; 
Exceptions. 

(a) Except as provided in subsection (b) of this section, no person may 
discharge a firearm and other dangerous weapons within the city. 

(b) Subsection (a) of this section does not prohibit the discharge of a firearm: 

(1) By a peace officer in the performance of his or her duty; 

(2) By any person when lawfully defending persons or property, or 
preventing crime; or 

(3) On a firing range established and operated in accordance with 
applicable state and local law . 

.(£1 Dangerous weapon for purposes of this section is defined as any 
instrument designed to propel an obiect with deadly force including blow 
guns, BB guns, Pellet guns, paintball guns, bows, compound bows, crossbows 

[Bold and underlined added. Deleted language striekea tlH'ough.] 
Ordinance No. 1359 
Page 1 of2 

Attachment A

16



Section 2: 

Section 3: 

ATTEST: 

or other similar instruments. This definition specifically does not include 
children's toys or other items of entertainment that are not designed to apply 
deadly force. 

Subsection (c) of Kodiak City Code Section 1.12.040, Disposition of 
offenses-fine schedule, is hereby amended by adding a new line to read as 
follows: 

City Code 
Provision Offense Fine 

8.96.010 Discharge of firearms $300 
and other dangerous 
weauons prohibited; 
Exceptions 

This ordinance shall be effective one month following final passage and 
publication in accordance with Kodiak Charter Article II Section 13. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

CITY CLERK 

First Reading: September 22, 2016 
Second Reading: 
Effective Date: 

Ordinance No. 1359 
Page2 of2 

[Bold and underlined added. Deleted lEmgHage strieken throl:lgh.] 

17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

19



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 
From: Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 
Thru: Mike Tvenge, Deputy City Manager � 
Date: October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: V. a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1360, Amending Kodiak City Code 3.12.020,
Limitation on City Manager's Authority; Kodiak City Code 3.12.030, Open 
Market Procedures; Kodiak City Code 3.12.040, Advertising for Bids; and 
Kodiak City Code 3.12.090, Purchase, Contract, or Sale Valid When
Prohibited When; to Increase the Limit on the City Manager's Contracting 
Authority From $15,000 to $35,000 and to Increase the Limit on Use of 
Open Market Contracting Procedures to $50,000 

SUMMARY: The update to the Kodiak City Code section 3.12.040 was last amended in 2000. Cost of 
goods and services has increased in this period, and this ordinance is intended to catch up with inflation. 
Many of the invoices and small projects recently exceed the City Manager's current spending authority 
and this increase would make for more efficiency in the procurement process. Staff recommends 
Council pass Ordinance No. 1360 in the first reading. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: There have been suggestions at Council work sessions to increase 
this spending authority. and most recently, during the September 20, 2016, work session, a draft 
ordinance was introduced and received overall support by Council. 

DISCUSSION: The City Manager has a spending authority without Council approval only if the value 
of the property, service or contract does not exceed $15,000. With the cost of goods and services 
climbing with inflation, this spending authority should reflect these changes. The intent of this ordinance 
is not to spend more but to keep the flow of City business conducted. When an item with a cost above 
this threshold, such as the recent $15,132 lift station pump replacement at Trident Basin, occurs the 
purchase must be scheduled for the agenda and a memo drafted and approved at a later date. Again, in 
this case, the ordering of the pump was delayed five weeks before it could be approved by Council. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1) Council can move this ordinance forward toward adoption, which is recommended.
2) Council may choose to keep the City Manager's spending authority at the current level, which

only impedes the process to conduct business.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: This does not increase the cost of goods or services but is likely to 
save money in efficiencies of acquisition. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 

Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page I of2 

20



LEGAL: The law firm of Birch Horton Bittner and Cherot has worked with the Deputy City Manager in 
drafting of this ordinance. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council pass this ordinance in the first reading 
and advance to second reading and public hearing. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: I support this increase in the Manager's spending authority as 
mentioned above. The motions of government can at times be impeded by the process and with this 
increase in authority, this process will ultimately improve. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1360 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to pass Ordinance No. 1360 in the first reading and advance to second reading and public 
hearing at the next special or regular meeting. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 2 of2 

21



[Bold and underlined added. Deleted language stricken through.] 
Ordinance No. 1360 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1360 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AMENDING 
KODIAK CITY CODE 3.12.020, LIMITATION ON CITY MANAGER’S AUTHORITY; 
KODIAK CITY CODE 3.12.030, OPEN MARKET PROCEDURES; KODIAK CITY 
CODE 3.12.040, ADVERTISING FOR BIDS; AND KODIAK CITY CODE 3.12.090, 
PURCHASE, CONTRACT, OR SALE VALID WHEN—PROHIBITED WHEN; TO 
INCREASE THE LIMIT ON THE CITY MANAGER’S CONTRACTING AUTHORITY 
FROM $15,000 TO $35,000 AND TO INCREASE THE LIMIT ON USE OF OPEN 
MARKET CONTRACTING PROCEDURES TO $50,000 

WHEREAS, Kodiak City Code 3.12.020 provides that the City Manager may make an 
acquisition, sale, transfer, or contract without council approval, open market, or bidding 
procedures, only if the value of the property, service, or contract does not exceed $15,000; and 

WHEREAS, Kodiak City Code 3.12.030 and 3.12.040 provide that the City Manager may 
make purchases, sales or contracts having an estimated value in excess of $15,000 but not more 
than $25,000 on the open market without newspaper advertisement; and 

WHEREAS, Kodiak City Code 3.12.090 requires City Council approval for purchases, 
sales, or contracts having an estimated value in excess of $25,000; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of goods and services has increased substantially since these dollar 
limits were enacted; and 

WHEREAS, an increase in the dollar limit on the City Manager’s contracting authority in 
Kodiak City Code 3.12.020 to $35,000 and on the City Manager’s authority to use open market 
procedures to $50,000 would recognize the increase in the cost of goods and services since these 
dollar limits were established, and support the efficient operation of City government. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
as follows: 

Section 1: Kodiak City Code 3.12.020, Limitation on City Manager’s authority, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

3.12.020 Limitation on City Manager’s authority 
The City Manager may make an acquisition, sale, transfer, or contract 

authorized by KCC 3.12.010 without Council approval, open market, or bidding 
procedures, if the value of the property, service, or contract does not exceed 
$35,000 $15,000.  

Section 2: Subsection (a) of Kodiak City Code 3.12.030, Open market procedures, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Attachment A

22



[Bold and underlined added. Deleted language stricken through.] 
Ordinance No. 1360 
Page 2 of 2 
 

(a) Purchases, sales, or contracts authorized by KCC 3.12.010, having an 
estimated value in excess of $35,000 $15,000 but not more than $50,000 $25,000, 
shall be made on the open market without newspaper advertisement. 

Section 3: Subsection (a) of Kodiak City Code 3.12.040, Advertising for bids, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

 
(a) Purchases, sales, or contracts authorized by KCC 3.12.010 having an 

estimated value of more than $50,000 $25,000 may be made only after a notice 
calling for bids is printed in a newspaper of general circulation published within 
the city. The notice shall be published at least once, not less than 30 days prior to 
the date of the bid opening. The notice shall contain a general description of the 
property, work, or service; state where the bid forms and specifications may be 
obtained; and specify the place for submission of bids and the time by which they 
must be received. Requirements for local publication need not be followed if the 
item or commodity cannot be purchased locally. 

Section 4: Subsection (a) of Kodiak City Code 3.12.090, Purchase, contract, or sale valid 
when—prohibited when, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

(a) A purchase, contract, or sale subject to the provisions of this chapter 
shall not be valid, enforceable, or binding upon the city unless the established 
requirements have been satisfied and the contract, purchase, or sale approved by 
the City Manager or, if of greater than $50,000 $25,000 value, by the Council. 

Section 2: This ordinance shall be effective one month following final passage and 
publication in accordance with Kodiak Charter Article II Section 13. 

 
CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
       
    MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 

CITY CLERK 
 
First Reading:   
Second Reading:   
Effective Date:  

23



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 

Thru: Mike Tvenge, Deputy City Manager ~ 
Date: October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: V. b. Resolution No. 2016-35, Accepting Funding From the State of Alaska 
Harbor Facilities Grant Program 

SUMMARY: City of Kodiak Resolution No. 2016-35 acknowledges the City's acceptance of grant 

funds from the State of Alaska Harbor Facilities Grant Program. On July 5, 2016, the State of Alaska 

awarded grant funds to the City of Kodiak for the Channel Transient Float replacement Project No. 

8525, in the amount of $1,365,792. Staff requests Council adopt Resolution No. 2016-35. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council adopted Resolution No. 2015-35 on December 10, 2015, 
supporting funding for the FY2017 State of Alaska Harbor Facilities Grant Program. 

DISCUSSION: Kodiak has previously received funding from the grant program to replace St. Herman 

Harbor M & P floats. This year the City applied for state matching grant funds for the Channel Transient 

Float Replacement Project and was ranked number one out of twelve applicants. On July 5, 2016, the 
State of Alaska fully funded the grant request for the sum of $1,365,792. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Adopt City Resolution No. 2016-35, accepting the State matching grant funds. This is staffs 

recommendation and is needed to move the CTF replacement project forward. 

2) Council could choose not to support the resolution, which is not recommended. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The CTF replacement cost is estimated at $2.7 million. The City has 

$1.5 million dedicated for the project. Without the state matching grant funds, the City of Kodiak would 
need to fund the whole replacement cost. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends City Council adopt Resolution No. 2016-35. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: The Port and Harbor Department deserve recognition for the 

successful grant award. This matching funding from the State is critical to complete the CTF Project 

within a limited municipal budget. The cost of dock replacement seems to be increasing each year and 
with our infrastructure needs we have at the harbor, anytime we can stretch our dollars for the 

betterment of our community is a bonus. I support and recommend Council adopt Resolution No. 2016-
35. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. b. Memo Page 1 of2 

24



ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Resolution No. 2016-35 
Attachment B: State of Alaska Grant Award Letter (dated July 5, 2016) 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to adopt Resolution No. 2016- 35 . 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. b. Memo Page 2 of2 

25



CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2016–35 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK ACCEPTING 
FUNDING FROM THE STATE OF ALASKA HARBOR FACILITY GRANT 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak has been awarded the FY2017 Harbor Facility Grant in 
the amount of one million, three hundred sixty-five thousand, and seven hundred ninety-two 
dollars ($1,365,792) for construction of the Kodiak Channel Transient Float Project; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak owns and maintains the Kodiak Channel Transient Float; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak has the required 50% in local matching funds for con-
struction of the Kodiak Channel Transient Float per the Harbor Facility Grant Program; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak is capable of completing the Kodiak Channel Transient 
Float Replacement Project No. 8525 within eighteen (18) months after award of a Harbor 
Facility Grant; and 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak Channel Transient Float is critical to the City of Kodiak. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
that the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign the State of Alaska Department of Transporta-
tion and Public Facilities’ Harbor Facility Grant document. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak that the City Man-
ager is hereby authorized to execute and administer any and all documents required for the 
acceptance and management of this grant award. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 
Adopted: 

Attachment A

26



Attachment B

27



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: 

Thru: 

Date: 

Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 

Mike Tvenge, Deputy Cit~ ger and James R. Mullican Jr., Fire Chief 

October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: V. c. Resolution No. 2016-36, Accepting a Code Blue Phase 16 Grant From the 
Southern Region EMS Council for Purchase of an Ambulance and 
Transferring $20,010 From the FY2017 General Fund Balance to the 
General Capital Project Fund - Ambulance Replacement Project No. 4047 

SUMMARY: The City was awarded a Code Blue Phase 16 Grant with a 25 percent match this year to 
provide cost share funding for the purchase of an ambulance. This grant along with 25 percent match 
would cover the cost of replacing one of our aging ambulances, a total cost of $195,000. This will be the 
second ambulance we have purchased utilizing the Code Blue Program. This year grant funding 
limitations have created a need to increase the City's originally requested 25 percent match by an 
additional $20,010. This increases the City match, from the budgeted $48,790 ($40 over the 25% 
requirement) to $68,800. Funds are available from the FY2017 General Fund Surplus to cover this 
increase. Staff recommends Council accept this grant and increase our co-pay to a total amount of 
$68,800 by adopting Resolution No. 2016-36. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council routinely accepts grants from federal or state agencies by 
resolution. 

DISCUSSION: The City Fire Department provides advance life support treatment and transport for the 
citizens of the City as well as those on the road system and transported in from the villages. The Fire 
Department maintains and operates a fleet of three ALS ambulances to meet current service requests. 
The service life of an ambulance per the City vehicle replacement schedule is ten years. Currently, we 
have two ambulances that meet the replacement criteria. One ambulance has been budgeted and 
approved for purchase in the FY2017 budget. For the second, Fire Chief Mullican wrote a grant to 
request funding support from Southern Region EMS Council's Code Blue Program with a 25 percent 
cost share co-pay from the City. In April we were informed our grant request was approved, however; 
funding from state and federal sources were still not complete. On September 20, 2016, we received a 
letter (Attachment B) from Southern Region EMS Council stating additional funding had been received, 
however, there was still $20,010 of unmet obligation and requested the City to increase our cost share. 
Funding is available in the FY201 7 General Fund Surplus to cover the unmet obligation. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page I of2 

28



ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Adopt Resolution No. 2016- 36, which is the recommendation of staff because it will offset the 

total cost of an ambulance purchase. 
2) Do not adopt Resolution No. 2016-36, which is not recommended because it would shift the cost 

burden for the ambulance directly to the City. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The amount of $68,800 will be used to meet the City's match to 
purchase approved medical equipment. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 2016-36, accepting 
the Code Blue Phase 16 Grant with $48,790 coming from FY2017 Capital Project Account No. 4047 
and remaining $20,010 from the FY2017 General Fund Surplus. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: Again we have staff writing successful grant applications 
stretching the City's dollars. The Fire Department deserves recognition for this effort. I recommend 
Council adopt Resolution No. 2016-36, which in essence purchases a new $195,000 ambulance for $68, 
800. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Resolution No. 2016-36 
Attachment B: Code Blue grant award notices dated September 20, 2016, and April 15, 2016 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to adopt Resolution No. 2016-36. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 2 of2 

29



Resolution No. 2016–36 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2016–36 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 
ACCEPTING A CODE BLUE PHASE 16 GRANT FROM THE SOUTHERN 
REGION EMS COUNCIL FOR PURCHASE OF AN AMBULANCE AND 
TRANSFERRING $20,010 FROM THE FY2017 GENERAL FUND BALANCE TO 
THE GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - AMBULANCE REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT NO. 4047 

WHEREAS, the City was awarded a Code Blue Phase 16 grant this year to 
purchase an ambulance, which required a 25% co-pay, and $48,790 was budgeted in the 
FY2017 budget; and 

WHEREAS, state and federal grant funding was less than anticipated, which 
required an additional $20,010 contribution from the City bringing the total City 
contribution to $68,800; and 

WHEREAS, this grant would provide $126,200 toward the total ambulance cost 
of $195,000; and 

WHEREAS, funds are available in the FY2017 General Fund fund balance to pay 
the additional $20,010 required co-pay; and 

WHEREAS, Article V of the City of Kodiak Charter provides that an 
appropriation of funds separate from the budget document may be made by resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, 
Alaska: 

Section 1.  The Fiscal Year 2017 Operating Budget is amended by appropriating 
and transferring $20,010 from the General Fund fund balance to the following account to 
pay the additional grant co-pay amount: 

Appropriation / Transfer From: 

Account Description Amount 

General Fund fund balance  $20,010 

Transfer to: 

Account Description  Amount 

General Capital Project Fund - 

Attachment A

30



Resolution No. 2016–36  
Page 2 of 2 

Ambulance Replacement Project No. 4047 $20,010 
 

 
Section 2.  This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

 
 

  CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
 

                       MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

  

                     CITY CLERK   
 Adopted:  

 
 

 
 

31



6130 Tuttle Place, Suite B, Anchorage, AK 99507 
(907) 562-6449   FAX: (907) 562-9893   www.sremsc.org

September 20, 2016 

James Mullican, Fire Chief 
Kodiak Fire Department 
219 Lower Mill Bay Rd 
Kodiak, AK 99615 

RE: Code Blue Phase 16 Funding awarded to date 

Dear Chief Mullican: 

We received State and USDA grant funding for this project and your award is reflected as follows: 

Item  Status USDA Local Match STATE UNMET Total 
Ambulance Approved $71,200 $48,750 $55,000 $20,050   $195,000 

The Code Blue Phase 16 equipment requests submitted by your agency for consideration have gone through a 
rigorous review process. There have been multiple review steps along the way, which include Southern Region 
staff, Board of Directors Equipment Review Committee, the Southern Region Board of Directors, and then the 
Statewide Code Blue Steering Committee who award State funding to the approved projects. 

During these steps, items have been considered based on many established criteria, including whether they are 
essential EMS equipment, whether they meet minimum criteria, reasonableness of the request, application to the 
community setting, documentation of need, costs, how they fit into regional and statewide priorities, and a host of 
others.  

There are always more requests than can ultimately be funded, so some simply do not make the list or their 
funding is capped as in the case of ambulance projects. The funding caps for ambulances were increased this year 
$35,000 to $55,000.  

If the City of Kodiak cannot fund the additional unmet portion of $20,050, please let me know and we can look at 
additional funding strategies.  

Thank you for all you do for EMS in Alaska. At Southern Region, we are working hard to support you in every 
way that we can.  

Sincerely, 

Sue Hecks 
Executive Director 

CC: Wayne Sargent, Subarea Coordinator 

Mission: 
Improve the quality, availability and sustainability of emergency patient care 

Attachment B

32



33



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: 

Through: 

Date: 

Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 

Mike Tvenge, Deputy C~ ager and Corey Gronn, Parks and Recreation Director 

October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: V. d. Resolution No. 2016-37, Authorizing the Kodiak Hockey League to Sell 
Concessions and Offer Skate Sharpening to the Community at Baranof 
Park 

SUMMARY: The Kodiak Hockey League (KHL ), a local non-profit organization, has requested 
permission to sell concessions during games at Baranof Park. KHL additionally requested permission to 
sharpen skates at Baranof Park. Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 2016-37. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: As provided for in the Kodiak City Code, Council periodically 
issues permits to non-profit organizations to conduct fundraising or other related activities on City 
property. 

DISCUSSION: Kodiak Hockey League is a newly formed 501 C (3) non-profit organization that 
provides up to 150 Kodiak youth the opportunity to learn the game of hockey as well as sportsmanship, 
fair play, respect, and teamwork. KHL requests permission from the City to sell concessions and 
merchandise in an effort to fundraise on City property to support its activities. With the closure of 
Skater's Edge and the local skate sharpening service they provided, KHL purchased the sharpener and 
wishes to continue this service to the public. KHL would provide skate sharpening to the community for 
a fee. Youth sport clubs like KHL do great work in the community and benefit the City Parks and 
Recreation Department in administering those programs. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Adopt Resolution No. 2016-37. This is staff's recommendation, because it supports youth sports 

and the Kodiak Hockey League. It is also consistent with past practice and is allowed by City 
Code. 

2) Do not adopt Resolution No. 2016-37. This is not recommended, as this group is willing to 
follow City Code requirements. 

LEGAL: KCC 5.04.050 allows the Council to issue permits to non-profit organizations to conduct 
activities on designated City-owned property through passage of a resolution. The attached resolution 
complies with that requirement. 

October 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. d. Memo Page 1 of2 

34



STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that Council adopt Resolution No. 2016-37, 
granting the Kodiak Hockey League a permit to sell concessions and merchandise and offer skate 
sharpening as requested, providing they coordinate activities with the Parks and Recreation Director, 

and comply with KCC sections 5.04.050 (b), (d), and 5.04.060. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: I recommend Council adopt Resolution No. 2016-37, as this 
action will benefit both the non-profit and the community. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Resolution No. 2016-37 
Attachment B: Request letter from Kodiak Hockey League (concessions) 
Attachment C: Request letter from Kodiak Hockey League (sharpener) 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to adopt Resolution No. 2016- 37. 

October 13, 20 16 
Agenda Item V. d. Memo Page 2 of2 

35



CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2016-37 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-
ING THE KODIAK HOCKEY LEAGUE TO SELL CONCESSIONS AND SHARPEN 
SKATES AT BARANOF PARK 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak Hockey League is a local nonprofit organization dedicated to the 
promotion of youth hockey; and 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak Hockey League sponsors and supports the activities of approxi-
mately 150 Kodiak youth who participate in hockey in Kodiak; and 

WHEREAS, this year, the Kodiak Hockey League requests permission to set up and then 
remove a concession space at the City’s ice rink during hockey games and events for the purpose 
of raising funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak Hockey League additionally requests permission to provide 
skate sharpening service available at Baranof Park, following compliance with insurance re-
quirements satisfactory to the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
that a permit be issued, with the permit fee waived, as provided in Kodiak City Code Section 
5.04.050(d), to the Kodiak Hockey League to sharpen ice skates and sell concessions during 
hockey games and events for the season. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that permission is granted for the Kodiak Hockey League 
to sell concessions at the games on the condition that the League complies with the applicable 
stipulations set forth in Kodiak City Code Section 5.04.050. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that event sponsors shall coordinate park use with the 
Kodiak Parks and Recreation Director. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 
Adopted: 

Attachment A

36



City Council, 

Kodiak Hockey League (KHL) is requesting the use of city property for fundraising purposes. 

KHL is a 501 c (3) non profit entity( EIN # 46-4989131) providing winter time activity to the youth 

of Kodiak through Hockey. We would like to hang sponsorship banners, sell simple 

concessions, sweatshirts, etc. and perhaps provide clinics to help generate revenue for the 

league. A temporary concession area would be set up and taken down on rink property under 

the roof each time we intend to use. We would do this throughout the KHL season. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

John Glover 

President 

Kodiak Hockey League 

Attachment B

37



City Council, 

Kodiak Hockey League (KHL) is a 501c(3) non profit entity (EIN # 46-4989131) providing winter 
time activity to the youth of Kodiak through Hockey. KHL has recently purchased a portable 
skate sharpener. This sharpener will be the only available sharpener in kodiak. Skate 
sharpening is a necessity for all ice skating activities. KHL would like to provide this needed 
service to the ice skaters within this community and would like to house and operate this 
sharpener inside of a small 6’x8’ shed stored on city/rink property. Only select qualified persons 
would operate the equipment. We would do this throughout the KHL season. 
Thank you for your consideration. 
Sincerely, 
John Glover 
President  
Kodiak Hockey League 

Attachment C

38



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

39



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 

Thru: Mike Tvenge, Deputy City Manager ~ 

Date: October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: V. e. Resolution No. 2016-38, Authorizing Payment for Two Additional Fiscal 
Year 2017 Nonprofit Organization Grants 

SUMMARY: Each year the City Council authorizes grant payments to local nonprofit organizations. 
The types and levels of funding are based on the City Council's nonprofit funding policy guidelines 
adopted by Resolution No. 2015-16. The policy resolution stipulates the total amount available for 
nonprofit grants in a given fiscal year, which equals the maximum of one percent of budgeted general 
fund revenues, exclusive of any fund balance appropriations. The total amount available in the FY2017 
budget for nonprofit grants was $184,500. In July the City received twenty applications for FY2017 
from nonprofit organizations that serve Kodiak for a total amount requested of $177,201. On July 14, 
2016, Council adopted Resolution No. 2016-23, which authorized payment of $177,201 to nonprofit 
grants. The funded grant requests of $177,201 left a balance of $7,299 from the budgeted amount of 
$184,500. In September, Council expressed support to award two additional FY2017 nonprofit grant 
awards in the amount of $6,700; Kodiak Audubon Society and Kodiak Baptist Mission Food Bank. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: 
• May 28, 2015, adopted Resolution No. 2015-16, which amended the City Council's policy for 

the amount and distribution of annual grant funds to local nonprofit organizations, eliminating 
the requirement that restricts funding to no more than ten percent (10%) less and/or more than 
the previous funding year. 

• July 22, 2015, reviewed FY2016 nonprofit grant applications and discussed level of support and 
funding amounts based on the approved FY2016 budgeted amount. 

• July 24, 2015, postponed adoption of Resolution No. 2015-21 to August 13 to allow for further 
review and discussion with some applicant agencies. 

• August 11, 2015, reviewed all applications, interviewed some agency representatives, and 
expressed consensus on funding as reflected in Resolution No. 2015-21. 

• July 12, 2016, reviewed and discussed all applications received and expressed consensus 
reflected in the final version of Resolution No. 2016-23. 

• July 14, 2016, Council adopted Resolution No. 2016-23. 

• September 20, 2016, Council reviewed and discussed two additional grant applications and 
expressed support for funding the Audubon Society and the Food Bank. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 

Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page l of 3 

40



DISCUSSION: The City received a total of twenty applications from organizations with a total of 

$177,201 requested during the initial application deadline. Of these organizations, thirteen requested the 

same amount of funding as received last fiscal year; five requested increases in funding from the 

previous year; one applicant requested additional funding in the category of one-time non-operational 

funding; and one applicant, St. Paul Lutheran Preschool, submitted a first-time request. Kodiak Kids 

Wrestling chose not to apply this year, as they have adequate program funds for the coming year but 

might need to apply in the future, and they thanked the City for its support. 

The policy guidelines adopted by Resolution No. 2015-16 eliminated the requirement that restricts 

funding to not more than ten percent less and/or more than the previous year funding. The elimination of 

this requirement is fairer to all applicants. The policy also grants agencies the ability to apply for one

time only non-operational funds for special projects when the City has additional funds available. 

Council reviewed and discussed the additional applications at their work session on September 20. 

Council discussed funding the amount by agency, which is reflected in Resolution No. 2016-38. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1) Adopt Resolution No. 2016-38 to appropriate two additional FY2017 grant funds to local

nonprofits, which is consistent with Council's stated intent at their September 20 work session.

2) Amend, postpone, or do not adopt the resolution.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: This resolution will authorize funding in the amount of $6,700 to the 

two additional applicants for FY2017. The total amount does not exceed the budgeted amount of 

$184,500 per the Council's policy of an amount not-to-exceed one percent of budgeted general fund 

revenues, exclusive of any fund balance appropriations. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Council adopt Resolution No. 2016-38 to 

authorize funding at the level Council supports. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: The City Council continues to recognize the value of supporting 

the efforts of local nonprofits through grant funding, in-kind awards, and other types of support 

throughout the year. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Resolution No. 2016-38 

Attachment B: Policy Resolution No. 2015-16 

Attachment C: Audubon and Food Bank Nonprofit Funding Applications 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 

Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page 2 of3 

41



PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2016--38. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 

Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page 3 of 3 

42



Resolution No. 2016–38 
Page 1 of 2

CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2016–38 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 
AUTHORIZING PAYMENT FOR TWO ADDITIONAL FISCAL YEAR 2017 
NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION GRANTS  

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes and supports local nonprofit organizations and 
has made provisions in the Fiscal Year 2017 budget for cash contributions to these organizations; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council supports these nonprofit organizations because they 
supplement and complement services provided by the City; and 

WHEREAS, the funding criteria for cash grants from the General Fund Non-
Departmental Contributions Account to nonprofit organizations is based on the criteria 
established in Resolution No. 2015–16; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed FY2017 nonprofit grant applications at the July 
12, 2016, work session and adopted Resolution No. 2016–23 on July 14, 2016, authorizing 
nonprofit grants in the amount of $177,201; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed FY2017 nonprofit grant applications at the 
September 20, 2016, work session and expressed support to authorize two additional nonprofit 
grants. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
hereby authorizes payment for two additional nonprofit organization grants for Fiscal 2017: 

Section 1. General Fund-Non-Departmental Cash Contributions (Nonprofit Organization 
Grants): 

FY2017 Additional Grant Request 

Adult Recreation Programs 
Kodiak Audubon Society 1,700 

Emergency Response Support Programs 
Kodiak Baptist Mission 5,000 

Two Additional Nonprofit Grant Requests 6,700 

FY2017 Nonprofit Grant Requests Previously Funded 177,201 

FY2017 Budgeted 184,500 

Nonprofit Grants Balance 599 

Attachment A

43



Resolution No. 2016–38 
Page 2 of 2

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 
Adopted: 

44



Attachment B

45



CITY OF KODIAK 
FY17 NONPROFIT FUNDING APPLICATION 

Return to City Manager's Office by June 17, 2016. 

ORGANIZATIONAL OVERVIEW 
Organization Name Kodiak Audubon Society 

Mailing Address _P_o_ Bo_x_ 17_56 _ ______ _ ____ ___ ___________ _ 

Telephone No. na - - -------------- Fax No._ n_a ________ _ 

Em a i I na -------------- --- ------------------
Feder a I Employer Tax ID Number _ 9_2_0_0_98_1_84 _ __________________ _ 

Contact Person Claudia Anderson secretary 

Title ? /? Pr_int~d Na"!1e 7 
Contact Person {. / /, tl,1,,uit-A«a£~ 

Signature 
CJ , / 3 " t20 I f:> 

Date 

List of Board Members and Officers: 
Cindy Trussell, president Mary Lukens, education 

Eric Munk, treasurer Rich MacIntosh, bird count 

Stacy Studebaker, conservation Robin Corcoran 

Cindy Bower, hiking Jill Wittenbrader 

Does agency have 501 (c)3 status from the IRS? llYes _C!1 No 

If yes, please include a letter from the IRS signifying agency's official non-profit tax exemption status. 

If no, has your agency applied for 501(c)3 status? ll Yes il No 

SERVICES: 

Provide a brief description of organization service(s) in order of priority: 
1. Hiking program: offers us the opportunity to advance mission with locals and tourists 
2. Christmas Bird Count: collects long term data with the help of many adults and children 
• . :-;abitat Advocacy: addresses local and state conservation issues, for example, Navy training in Gulf, airport 
extension at Buskin, logging in Chiniak, lake fertilization 
4. Outdoor Education: supports programs with schools, for example, 5th grade Camp Woody, Audubon 
Adventures for 4th grade& 
5. Public Presentations and Bird Note& 

T~ity of Kodiak doe~ t fund religious programs. Are your agency·s services fa ith-based? 

J......J__ Yes ~ No 
If yes, how do you plan to use the City's funding? 

H C·t ·ct t ·,1 b d b th· t? This year 467 hikers: 330 local and 137 visitors 
ow many I y res, en s wt e serve y ,s gran . --------- --- ------

Please attach a copy of the organization's Mission Statement. 
City of Kodiak Nonprofi t Grant Appl il.'.ationiR.eport 
FY:!017 
,.., ,, .. . ... t . ~ , • .:: 

Attachment C

46



How does your agency collaborate with other local nonprofit organizations? 
Island Trails: helped us with limited trail upgrades at Buskin Bird Banding site 
Ducks Unlimited: provided planning for settling ponds at Potato Patch 
Kodiak College and Kodiak National Wildlife Refuge: collect mist netting data at Buskin project 
Wildlife Refuge: collaboration on International Migratory Bird Day 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Funding will be granted only for the following kinds of programs/activities and up to the 
maximum identified funding amount per organization, per program type: 

• Youth Recreation Programs $ 2,500 
• Adult Recreation Programs $ 5,000 
• Public Safety Support Programs (Shelter/Food) $10.000 
• Emergency Response Support Programs $10,000 

A special one-time funding increase for a special project is applied for (see page 3 of application) if 
approved by the Council. 

List category(s) of funding requested from the above list and explain how your organization's programs 
fall within the powers of the City of Kodiak for each category of funding requested: 

Category adult recreation Amount _$_11_00_. -------

Explanation: 
This was the 2016 cost of our insurance through CHUBB for the hiking program. 

Category _______________ _ Amount ----------
Explanation: 

Category _______________ _ Amount _________ _ 

Explanation: 

City of Kodiak :'\onprofit Gram ApplicatiowRcport 

47



Total funding request to the City of Kodiak _$1_7_00 ______________ _ 

What percentage of funds will be used for administrative costs? O% -------------
What percentage of funds will be used for direct services? __ 1_oo_~_o_if_in_s_ur_a_nce_i_s_co_n_s_id_er_ed_d_irec_t_se_rv1_·_ei 

How will the funds be used? 
to buy Insurance 

Is your agency audited? llves ~No 

If yes, please attach latest audit or financial report. 

If your agency Is applying for special one-time only funding for a non~operational project, please 
describe the project, the need for it, what the project will accomplish, specific outcomes expected, 
describe who will benefit, and provide a timeline and target dates, including the expected date of 
completion. Please provide a thorough description of the project and adequate information as 
requested to be considered for funding. Use another sheet if necessary and clearly mark it as an 
addendum to the application to the application for one-time funding. 

City of Kodiak Nonprofit Grant Application/Report 
FY2017 
n ... --.., ... ,r:r 

48



OTHER FUNDING SOURCES 

List the amount of funding your agency received from other sources during the past fiscal year: 

Federal State ---------
City of Kodiak _______ _ Kodiak Is. Borough ___ _ 

Parent Organization ... (see mernbe ('"3h "ip) Corporate Grants ___ _ 

Foundations ------- Client Fees ------
Donations -------- Memberships - ,.., $480 

1 n t ere st yes, but I don't have anbc. u.nt Gaming Permit Activities 
(pull tabs, raffles etc.) __ _ 

If you receive state or federal grants, what is the percentage and amount of local match required for 
~ch grant your agency receives? 

What effects will there be and what alternative plans does your agency have if City funding is not 
recetved? 
Sales of The Kodiak Audubon's Hiking & Birding Guide have in the past covered our expenses Including 
,.;1$Urance. The new free trail map from Discover Kodiak has already proved to impact our sales. We can cover 
Ile costs this year for the hiking insurance but we as a board would have to decide whether or not to continue 
the hiking program. 

Did your organization recei~unding from the C~]f Kodiak during the last fiscal year (July 1, 2015 -
June 30, 2016). Yes..Y_ No • 
AH applicants please complete the OTHER FUNDING SOURCES (top of page 4) and attach FY16 
financial reports or fat est audits with this application. 

Scoring Criteria 
Services meet City nonprofit funding criteria (adult and youth recreation programs, public 
safety services, and emergency response support programs 25 points 

Grant reports submitted to City as required 

Number of City residents served 

Other sources of applicant funding identified 

City of Kodiak Nonprofit Grant Application/Report 

25 points 

25 points 

25 points 

49



_20~ 4~20~ 5 f:inahcial -Report . ~ 
·:~,,. ·,.,~ ·,.~.,., .:-- 0 ,~ ,,v c"" "~-- ::.~--.,l~:., ~ ~ "1 

- Kodiak Audubon Society 
Person Reporting: 

iEmail: 
I 
I·. ~ .. 

IF.'hone: 
Report Status: ,. 
! Last Modified Date: 
L. .••• 

[Eric /l/l~nk 
l .•. 

i emunk@gci.net 

.I . 
I Submitted 

!0~(2~/201 ~ 

f~~~~td • .. 1f:{1r~;~~i'r 
!Your name ·,;~i~~~nk 
i 

jYour email address: jernunk@gci.net 

!This report covers the following 12 month fiscal year (please !7/1/2014-6/30/2015 

lu.~E:l-~~rn_E:lx_E:l~-r~~--()·~-~~~ ~orrn 99~-o~-~=-e9-_st~~~L _ ___ .. I.. _ 
1 If "other", enter beginning and ending fiscal year dates: j 

· tFis~~I v;~r-·op~~ating Reve~'ue and Expense* as of the encl ~f 11244826. I the year noted above: I · 
i Total Operating Revenue: 1 
1 ................................ ·-··· .. ..... •••. . •.. ' ....... . 

!Total Operating Expense: !4883.07 
I ,.,.,, ""' ·~>M .,_,,_. < ~ ,,.,, ; " •s • c•,, •, .,.L.,_ <, < 

!Total of all Chapter funds (Funds Balance) at the end of the 133336.27 
ifiscal year (e.g., all funds held by the Chapter including I 
\checking account, savings account, endowment account, I 
i Certificates of Deposit, stocks and other investment accounts; I 
[~<:>es not include the value of land or other buildings): I 

i Portion of funds balance that was restricted or reserved for a 1414.00 
!specific use (e.g., funds that are not freely available, their use ! 
lbeing limited to a specific program or project; includes grants 1 
!for specific activities, board or donor restricted funds,· 1 

!endowmE:l_~t a~_cou~ts,):. j 
!Please note grant funding received from non-Audubon source /0.00 
i(s) (do not include Toyota TogetherGreen or Collaborative 
:Funding): .. _ . 
!P·i~~;~··;:;;t~ ·;~~enue received for separate Chapter lo.oo 
Jmemberships (do not include Audubon Baseline or Membership i 
!Incentive Payments): : 

i Comments: I 
!- ·l-

i*Definitions: I 
:Annual Operating Revenue includes all cash earned or raised 
: IN THE LAST FISCAL YEAR to cover the costs of running the 
!Chapter. 
;Annual Operating Expense includes all costs incurred IN THE 
i LAST Fl?(:;AL Y~AR to, ()perate _a~d mainta_in t~e Chapter: 

! If you have completed this report to your satisfaction, please 
'submit it by clicking the Submit Form button below. Otherwise, 
:you may save your work and return later. 

If you haven't already, please also complete the 2014-2015 
:auestionnaire by selecting it from the Forms menu. 

.. L .. 

50



Kodiak Audubon Society 

Mission Statement 

The mission- of Kodiak Audubon is to conserve Alaska's natural ecosvstems 
-wcusing on birds, other wildlife, and their habitats for the benefit and enjoyment 
of current and future generations. 

51



File No. 39061-D 

· 08-120 

llrpurtmtnt of arnmmtrtt anll £cnnomtc lltutlnpmtnt 

<t!trtificatt 
NONPROFIT CORPORATION 

The undersigned, as Commissioner of Commerce and Economic Develop
ment of the State of Alaska, hereby certifies that duplicate originals 
of the Articles of Incorporation of 

KODIAK AUDUBON SOCIETY, INC. 
. 

have been received in this office and are found to conform to law. 

ACCORDINGLY, the undersigned, as such Commissioner of Commerce and 
Economic Development, and by virtue of the authority vested in him by 
law, hereby issues the Certificate of Incorporation and attaches 
hereto a duplicate original of the Articles of Incorporation. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I execute this certificate 
and affix the Great Seal of the State of Alaska on 
October 22, 1986. 

4 ../ ·:!\ 

t?J~d//~k,· 
GOMMIS~.IONER OF COMMERCE~-- / 
AND ECONOMIC DEVE'LOPMENT 

52



2016 Audubon Hikin Schedule 
Updates on t=acebook "Kodiak Audubon Hikers", KMXT-FM 100.1 "Island Messenger•, KVOK-AM (Thur & Fri), Daily Mirror 

Dltet Oestim1tiQn Difficulty Leader Phone# 
::t Sat. 23 Whale Watching, Drive to Pasagshak Point to view whales 1 Cindy Bower 486-0499 a: 
Q. Sat. 30 Whale Watching, Narrow Cape (hike if weather permits) 4 miles 3 Stacy Studebaker 486-6498 ca: 

Sun. 1 Guided Birding Trip (view birds on local lakes and beaches) 1 Rich MacIntosh 486-3087 
Sat. 7 H1;titman Lake (wet start, birds, flowers, 4 miles) 3 Linda Himelbloom 486-0822 
Sun. 8 Kalsin Ridge (goats, birds, views of Kalsin Bay & Saltry Cove, 5 miles) 4 Jessica Eanes (252) ~04-0564 

~ Sat. 14 INTERNATIONAL MIGRATORY BIRD DAY (no hike) X X X 
:E Sun. 15 Pyramid Mountain (hike, climb, birds, flowers, views, 6 miles) 5 JoAnn Snoderly (304) 376-4159 

Sat. 21 Abercrombie (Parkside to Ram Site loop, birds, flowers, 2 miles) 2 Mary Lukens 486-2654 
Sun. 22 Termination Point (hike in woods, birds, flowers, 6 miles) 4 Heather Preece 907-512-6762 

Sat. 2-8 KODIAK CRAB FEST (no hikes) X X X 
Sun.29 KODIAK CRAB FEST (no hikes) X X X 
Sat. 4 Old Woman's mountain-to-fairgrounds (birds, flowers, 6 miles) 4 Susan Reid 486-8464 
Sat. 5 Kashevaroff Mountain (views. flowers, birds, 6 miles) 5 Jessica Eanes (252) 204.()564 

Sat. 11 Near Island, south end (birds, flowers, 3 miles) 2 Mary Lukens 486-2654 w z Sun. 12 Swampy Acres to Pillar Mountain, up & over (yoga, 5-6 miles) 4 Veronica Costa-Bolton 486-4099 
:::> 

Sat. 18 Barometer Mountain (steep climb, views, flowers, 4 miles} 5 Stephanie Jenkins (502) 939.0495 .., 
Sun. 19 Sharatin Mountain (hike, climb, birds, flowers, 5-7 miles) 5 Heather Preece 907-512-6762 

Sat. 25 Margaret (Boy Scout) Lake to Buskin Beach (yoga hike) 2 Veronica Costa-Bolton 486-4099 
Sun.26 Pillar Mountain, (birds, flowers, 3 miles) 3 Mary Lukens 486-2654 
Sat. 2 Pyramid Mountain, to the peak (yoga, climb, flowers .. 6 miles) 5 Veronica Costa-Bolton 486-4099 
Sun. 3 Bells Flats 5-lake-loop (start at Jack Lake, flowers, birds, 2 miles) 3 Heather Preece 907-512-6762 

Sat. g, Monashka Mountain (steep climb, great views, 6 miles) 5 Hans Tschersich 486-5648 

~ 
Sun. 10 Backside of Three Sisters (wet start, yoga, hike, 5 miles) 4 Veronica Costa-Bolton 486-4099 

::) Sat. 16 Heitman Lake, to the peak (wet start, birds, flowers, 6 miles) 4 Hans Tschersich 486-5648 ..., 
Sun. 17 Pyramid Circuit (climb to 1,700 ft, hike to golf course, 7 miles) 5 Patrick Saltonstall 486-2634 
Sat. 23 Old Woman's Mt, fairgrounds-to-peak (yoga, hike, 6 miles) 4 Veronica Costa-Bolton 486-4099 
Sun.24 Kalsin Ridge (goats, birds, views of Kalsin Bay & Saltry Cove, 5 miles) 4 Jessica Eanes (252) 204-0564 

Sat. 30 Cascade Lake (wear hiking boots but bring water shoes, 4 miles) 3 Hans Tschersich 486-5648 
Sun.31 Cope Mt Plateau (wear hiking boots but bring water shoes, 6 -8 miles) 5 Marsha Spaford 654-4622 
Sat. 6 Kashevaroff Mountain (views, flowers, birds, 6 miles) 5 Jessica Eanes (252) 204-0564 

Sun. 7 Chiniak Beaches (birds, flowers, WWII bunkers, 4 miles) 2 Hans Tschersich 486-5648 

~ Sat. 13 Termination Point (hike in woods, birds, flowers, 6 miles) 3 Hans Tschersich 486-5648 
::) Sun. 14 North Sister (wet start. birds, flowers, hike, climb, 5 miles} 4 Heather Preece 907-512-6762 
0 ::, Sat. 20 Anton Larsen Pass loop (climb, views, flowers, birds, 6 miles) 4 Cindy Trussell 486-2878 
C Sun. 21 Boy Scout Lakes (Buskin Hill WWII bunkers, beach walk, 2 miles) 2 Mary Lukens 486-2654 

Sat. 27 Russian Ridge (great forest hiking in town, 2-3 miles) 3 Mary Lukens 486-2654 
Sun.28 Old Woman's mountain-to-fairgrounds (birds, flowers, 6 miles) 4 Heather Preece 907-512-6762 

The Kodiak Audubon Society invites you to join us for a stroll, a hike, or a climb! All hikes are free and open to 
the public. Meet your hike leader at 9:30 am in front of the Kodiak Island Convention & Visitors Bureau {Ferry 
Building) at the end of Center Avenue, downtown. The hike difficulty is rated from 1 (easy walk) to 5 (difficult) . 

... _ ·-- - - - - -- - - -- --- -·- ~ ----- ---- -- -- --- - -· .;;.._ ----:- -- '··-- - - __ -_._ __ , --- ·--- -----~ ·-------·-= ---~ 

The .mission of Kodiak ·Audubon Ja·to .~ Alaska's natural~ focusing (XI- birds, -

~-· - ~ ~'!ild!!ferand~:. .. _~ ---- for,the~~en~cl~and~~- - - - - - -·-

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



(This page left intentionally blank.) 

69



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: 

Thru: 

Date: 

Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 

Mike Tvenge, Deput~ anager and Mark Kozak, Public Works Director 

October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: V. f. Resolution No. 2016- 39, Appropriating $30,550 From the Water Capital 
Improvement Unassigned Fund Balance to the UV Water Treatment 
Facility Project No. 03-14/7023 and Authorizing a Professional Services 
Contract for Updating the UV Reactors to the 2012 Validation Status and 
Completing New Programming of the Operating System 

SUMMARY: The City is required to get approval to operate from Alaska Department of Environmental 
Conservation (ADEC) for any water system modifications or new facility. Compliance regulations also 
required approval from ADEC to construct the new Ultra Violet (UV) Water Treatment Plant and, upon 
completion, we need to apply for final approval for our Certificate to Operate the UV Water Treatment 
Plant. CH2MHILL submitted the City's request for approval to operate on August 10, 2012. Since that 
time we have received several extensions to our interim approval to operate the UV Water Treatment 
Plant. CH2MHILL has continued to respond and coordinate the approval to operate with ADEC. In mid
year 2015, the updated and adopted US Environment Protection Agency (EPA) UV Guidance Manual 
was approved and accepted by ADEC. Several options were proposed to ADEC and they would accept 
several of the options as meeting their need for final approval. Staff is requesting Council's approval of 
this service upgrade of the UV reactors and reprogramming of the system with Calgon Carbon 
Corporation (Calgon) in the amount of $30,550.00 with funds coming from the UV Water Treatment 
Facility Project No. 03-14/7023. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: 

• February 2003, City Council authorized a feasibility study to evaluate what secondary water 
treatment process could be used to meet the requirements of new regulations for surface water 
systems to continue operating under filtration avoidance criteria with CH2MHILL. 

• July 2007, the City approved a contracted with CH2MHILL for Pre-design/final design of a UV 
Water Treatment facility. The Pre-Design was completed in February 2008 and final design was 
completed in 2010. 

• February 2010, City Council approved the UV treatment equipment purchase from Calgon. 

• January 2011, City Council awarded the Construction project to Jay-Brant General Contractors. 

• January 2011, City Council awarded a professional service contract to CH2MHILL for project 
management of the UV Water Treatment Facility. 

October 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. f. Memo Page 1 of 5 

70



• February 2013, City Council awarded a professional service agreement with CH2MHILL for 
Engineering Services for Final Approval to Operate the UV Water Treatment Facility. 

BACKGROUND: The City of Kodiak operates a public water system using surface water for its supply 
source. Over the years many EPA water treatment regulations have addressed surface water systems. In 
September 1992, the City was granted approval by the EPA to operate under Filtration Avoidance 
Criteria based on a new regulation. This allowed the community to continue to operate a public water 
system supplied by surface water without filtering the water as long as we meet all of the required 
criteria. A new regulation was adopted in 2006 requiring all surface water systems operating under 
filtration avoidance criteria to begin treating the water using two types of disinfectant. The City 
completed an evaluation of our water quality and potential options to meet the new regulations including 
water filtration. It was determined that using UV water treatment to meet our second disinfection 
requirement was the most cost effective for our community. 

DISCUSSION: Current ADEC and EPA regulations require that any time a new process, expansion or 
large scale change is made to any water or wastewater system you must submit engineered design plans 
for approval to construction. Once the project is complete, you must submit asbuilts and operation 
manuals for approval to operate the new system. 

The ADEC issued the City a certificate to construct the UV Water Treatment facility in December 2010. 
The project was bid and construction began the spring of 2011. The completed project started operation 
in March 2012 and we have been operating the facility since. 

CH2MHILL submitted our request for approval to operate in August 2012. They responded to multiple 
requests from ADEC for additional information of a very technical and time consuming task, which 
increased cost substantially. Council approved additional funds to support this work. In June 2013, 
ADEC issued an interim approval to operate the UV WTP. This approval expired on October 1, 2014. 
CH2MHILL submitted a request to ADEC in September 2014 requesting final approval to operate. 

We received a letter from ADEC proposing they would extend the interim approval to operate the UV 
Water Treatment system through December 31, 2015. They wanted additional information that 
addressed the safety correction factor, Action Spectra Correction Factor (ASCF), which the facility 
operates with per the interim approval to operate. Later ADEC notified the City they were waiting for an 
additional guidance document to be published by the EPA addressing the safety correction factor used in 
UV water treatment. The decision to hold off until this updated UV guidance document was published 
was due to the amount of safety correction factors we would be required to operate under. 

This additional delay and request for more information from both the UV reactor manufacturer Calgon, 
and engineer CH2MHILL, is taking additional time and funds. 

October 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. f. Memo Page 2 of 5 

71



The new EPA UV guidance document that ADEC was waiting for was completed in July 2015 and 
ADEC addressed our request for a certificate to operate later last fall. 

Calgon and CH2M have been working on this since last fall. We received four potential options that had 
been reviewed by ADEC for the purpose of final compliance with the new UV guidance document from 
Calgon through CH2M on September 28. The preferred and recommended option is No. 4. Below is the 
brief outline of the options for compliance. 

The table below summarizes the options: 

Option Description Projected ASCF Estimated Calgon 
Cost 

1 Use 2006 validation and 1.2-1.57 $20,560 
default ASCF based on 
number of lamps operating 
from WRF Guidance 

2 Upgrade to 2012 validation 1.46 $28,360 
and use default worst case 
ASCF 

3 Upgrade to 2012 validation 1.16-1.46 $30,400 
and develop an equation to 
adjust ASCF based on UVT 

4 Upgrade to 2012 validation 1.01-1.07 $30,550 
and provide WRF Guidance 
compliant CFD modeling to 
calculate ASCF based on 
UVT and number of lamps 
operating 

Below is an explanation of the acronyms used in the above table. 

• ASCF = Action Spectra Correction Factor. This is a correction factor that is applied to the UV 
dose that accounts for reduced inactivation of test microbes and pathogens at different 
wavelengths that occurs in medium pressure systems. Fundamentally, the ASCF increases the 
power output by the UV system to act as a safety factor. 

• WRF Guidance= Water Research Foundation Report #4376, "Guidance for Implementing 
Action Spectra Correction With Medium Pressure UV Disinfection" which was made final late 
in 201 5. This was published by the EPA and A WW A after much research and debate to provide 
uniform guidance to the reduced inactivation problem. 

October 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. f. Memo Page 3 of 5 

72



• CFD = Computational Fluid Dynamics. In this case performed of the UV reactor to determine 
exactly how much UV light reaches every portion of the reactor. It includes shadows from the 
individual lamps as well as has inputs for various water quality. 

• UVT - Ultraviolet Transmittance. A measure of how easily UV light travels through the water. 

Although Option 4 is the most expensive, we are expecting this option will save us approximately $300 
to $500/month in electrical cost over the other options. That actual saving is very dependent on water 
quality (UVT and turbidity) and flow. However, we do know that the correction factor will increase 
substantially under the other options listed. The safety correction factor determines how much additional 
UV energy is used above calculated dosages to meet disinfection requirements. The extra dosage 
increases the number of bulbs used for a given flow and water quality and the energy each bulb is 
operated at. 

ALTERNATIVES: The requirement to have a certificate to operate the UV Water Treatment plant is 
critical to compliance with EPA and ADEC regulations. Completing the upgrading of the UV reactors to 
the most recent manufacture validation and operating guidelines will allow us to finally meet ADEC 
requirements for final approval to operate. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: This additional work was understood to be included in the overall 
project. We did not anticipate the extent of the ADEC request and the huge cost it would have and the 
time it would take. The original UV project was closed out in order to transfer almost $1.8 million 
dollars of AMMO funds to the Monashka project. It was not anticipated that a new UV Guidance 
Manual would be completed and that our project would be required to go through this extensive process 
for final approval. Now that we have a final path forward, we can comply with the required changes to 
the UV Guidance Manual and receive our certificate to operate. 

In order to fund this additional work, a fund transfer from the Water Capital Improvement Fund into the 
UV Water Treatment Facility Project No. 03 -14/7023 is necessary. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council approve this professional service 
agreement with Calgon Carbon Corporation to update the UV reactors to the 2012 validation and 
complete the new programming of the operating system in the amount of $30,550 with funds coming 
from the UV Water Treatment Facility Project No. 03-14/7023. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: We know the importance of water safety and the reliance our 
community has on our water supply system. This upgrade to the UV system is necessary to comply with 
the current EPA and ADEC Regulations. I support staffs recommendation to update the UV reactor 
system. 

October 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. f. Memo Page 4 of 5 

73



ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Resolution No. 2016-39 
Attachment B: Calgon Carbon Corporation Proposal 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to adopt Resolution No. 2016-39. 

October 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. f. Memo Page 5 of 5 

74



Resolution No. 2017–39 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2016–39 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 
APPROPRIATING $30,550 FROM THE WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE TO THE UV WATER TREATMENT 
FACILITY PROJECT NO. 03-14/7023 AND AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES CONTRACT FOR UPDATING THE UV REACTORS TO THE 2012 
VALIDATION STATUS AND COMPLETING NEW PROGRAMMING OF THE 
OPERATING SYSTEM 

WHEREAS, the EPA and ADEC require certification to operate the City’s UV 
Water Treatment Plant; and 

WHEREAS, completing the upgrade of the UV reactors to the most recent 
manufacture validation and operating guidelines will comply with certification 
requirements; and  

WHEREAS, Article V of the City of Kodiak Charter provides that an 
appropriation of funds separate from the budget document may be made by resolution; 
and 

WHEREAS, Calgon Carbon Corporation has worked with CH2M, the City’s UV 
Water Treatment Facility project manager, to fulfill necessary regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, 
Alaska: 

Section 1.  The Fiscal Year 2017 Operating Budget is amended by appropriating 
$30,550 from the Water Capital Improvement Unassigned Fund Balance to the following 
account to pay for updating the UV reactors to the 2012 validation status and completing 
new programming of the operating system: 

Appropriation From: 

Account Description Amount 

Water Capital Improvement Fund Balance $30,550 

Transfer to: 

Account Description  Amount 

UV Water Treatment Facility Project No. 7023 $30,550 

Attachment A

75



Resolution No. 2017–39 
Page 2 of 2 

Section 2.  A professional services contract with Calgon Carbon Corporation for 
UV Reactor Upgrading and Programming for the UC Water Treatment Facility is hereby 
authorized in the amount of $30,550 with funds from the UV Water Treatment Facility 
Project No. 7023. 

Section 3.  This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 
Adopted: 

76



Service Quote Template_Rev1.xls Page 1 of 7

CALGON CARBON CORPORATION
UV Technologies Division

   Fax 724 695-3318

Mark Kozak From:
City of Kodiak Phone:

E-Mail:
Date:

US-10032 REF.:

Qty. Part No. Unit Price Total
- 

Lot - 
- 
- 

installation and checking on site. - 
- 

1 CFD Modeling/Process Engineering/Regulatory Support 5,000.00         5,000.00        
1 80 Hours PLC/HMI Programming  14,000.00       14,000.00      
1 16 Hours In-house testing 2,800.00         2,800.00        
1 34 Hours Travel to/from site 5,950.00         5,950.00        
1 16 2 (8) hour days on site 2,800.00         2,800.00        

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Note Any parts required for repairs are not included  in the above - 
and will be invoiced separately. - 

- 
Technician will be scheduled upon receipt of purchase order - 
or credit card. - 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

USD 30,550.00      

Quotation valid for 30 days from date above.
Pricing excludes any applicable taxes, duty or customs clearance charges.
Net 30 days from date of Invoice.
Prepaid and Charge.
To be confirmed upon receipt of order.

The terms and conditions attached hereto shall apply to the sale of goods/or services listed in this quotation 
      and to any purchase order issued in connection therewith.

All orders subject to acceptance where equipment not manufactured by CCC.
Warranty and guarantees expressed or implied are the standard warranties and guarantees of the mfg.

wish to use your Visa, Mastercard, American Express or Discover card. **
**  Did you know we accept Credit Cards?  Please let us know if you

Delivery:
Freight Terms:

Payment Terms: 

Notes: 

Scott Vilsack

724 218-7018

svilsack@calgoncarbon-us.com

September 30, 2016

Project No.:
**Please reference this project number and quotation date when placing orders**

To:
Company:

Phone:
E-Mail:

Description

US-10032-093016-SVC

I am pleased to provide the following quote for your consideration.  
If you have any questions please contact me either by phone or email at the numbers above.

Upgrade Kodiak Sentinel 24" UV reactors PLC and OIT programs
for the new 2012 validation including the inclusion of dynamic Action
Spectrum Correction, testing the software at the CCUVT faclity and

letterhead.  Please include ship to and bill to addresses.
Calgon Carbon requires customers to supply PO's on company

Attachment B

77

mailto:svilsack@calgoncarbon-us.com
pubdir
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT: B



Service Quote Template_Rev1.xls Page 2 of 7

78



Service Quote Template_Rev1.xls Page 3 of 7

79



Service Quote Template_Rev1.xls Page 4 of 7

80



Service Quote Template_Rev1.xls Page 5 of 7

81



Service Quote Template_Rev1.xls Page 6 of 7

82



Service Quote Template_Rev1.xls Page 7 of 7

83



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Council members 
From: 

Thru: 

Date: 

Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 
Mike Tvenge, Deputy C�ager and Ronda Wallace, Chief of Police 
October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: V. g. Authorization of Up Fitting of Recently Purchased Police 

Department Vehicles 

SUMMARY: This action authorizes the Up fitting ( or build) of three new Police Interceptor Utility 
(PI Utility) SUV's for the Kodiak Police Department, which were recommended for replacement and 
purchased during FY2017. Up fitting includes accessory equipment needed to complete the patrol 
vehicle. Staff recommends Council authorize Alaska Safety Inc. to build the three PI Utility vehicles 
for a total of $33,375. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: 

• The replacement of three high mileage Police Interceptor Utility (Pl Utility) SUV's and their
associated equipment build was presented to Council during the May 7, 2016, budget
presentation meeting for replacement in FY201 7.

• Council subsequently funded the replacement when the budget was adopted during the June
30, 2016, regular Council meeting.

• Council approved the purchase of three PI Utility SUVs to replace high mileage SUV's
during the September 8, 2016, regular Council meeting.

DISCUSSION: The Kodiak Police Department purchased three new PI Utility SUV's from Cal 
Worthington in Anchorage, Alaska through the State of Alaska Light Duty Contract. All three 
vehicles will be used for routine and emergency response related duties. Additionally, one vehicle 
purchased for the canine program will require transportation of a canine. 

PI Utility vehicles, although built to certain specifications for public safety from the factory, do not 
come with all the required safety equipment. This safety equipment includes but not limited to the 
following: radios, lights, sirens, prisoner containment units, docking stations for TRACS computers 
and a K-9 Kit for containment of a police canine. 

Alaska Safety Inc. has been in business since 1996 and specializes in the builds of public safety 
emergency vehicles throughout the State of Alaska. They are a master distributor, which means they 
have factory-trained technicians, warranty issues can be expedited more efficiently and cost effective 
service to the customer. Alaska Safety Inc. is the only full service, emergency vehicle install shop in 
the Anchorage area, which will allow for a complete build on our PI Utility SUV's prior to arrival in 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. g. Memo Page 1 of 3 

84



Kodiak, and limits down time of the vehicle after purchase. The Kodiak Police Department has 
utilized Alaska Safety Inc. build process for the last several years. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Authorize the City Manager to move forward with the sole-source purchase of emergency 

equipment and allow Alaska Safety Inc. to complete the build of three PI Utility SUV' s. This 
is staffs recommendation. 

2) Do not authorize this transaction. This alternative is not recommended because it would 
affect police operations and be contrary to the interest of the City. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: There is sufficient funding in the FY2017 KPD budget to cover 
the cost of all three vehicles builds. 

LEGAL: Kodiak City Code Section 3.12.070(a)(2) states, "Providers of professional services shall 
be selected solely on experience and qualifications and price shall not be a factor in the selection 
process". This provision permits the City to sole source the emergency equipment purchase for the PI 
Utility SUV's builds through Alaska Safety Inc. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff is recommending the Council authorize the sole source 
purchase of emergency equipment from Alaska Safety Inc. and allow the company to complete the 
build of three PI Utility SUV's, with funds coming from the FY2017 Kodiak Police Department 
Operational Budget, Police Canine Sub-Department, Machinery and Equipment Greater $5000 line 
item in the amount of $10,845; and funds coming from the FY2017 Kodiak Police Department 
Operational Budget, Uniformed Patrol Sub-Department, Machinery and Equipment Greater $5000 
line item in the amount of$22,530. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: I support staffs recommendation to contract with Alaska 
Safety Inc. for the up fitting of the three Police Interceptor Utility vehicles. The vehicles were 
purchased in Anchorage and the addition of safety equipment also in Anchorage is logistically 
sensible. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Quotation #028494 for build of two Pl Utility vehicles 
Attachment B: Quotation #030088 for build ofK-9 PI Utility vehicle 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. g. Memo Page 2 of3 

85



PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to authorize the City to sole-source pw-chase emergency equipment from Alaska Safety 
Inc. and authorize the company to complete the build of three (3) PI Utility SUV's, with funds 
coming from the FY20I 7 Kodiak Police Department Operational Budget, Police Canine Sub
Department, Machinery and Equipment Greater $5000 line item in the amount of $10,845; 
and funds coming from the FY2017 Kodiak Police Department Operational Budget, 
Uniformed Patrol Sub-Department, Machinery and Equipment Greater $5000 line item in the 
amount of $22,530 and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the 
City. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. g. Memo Page 3 of3 

86



Attachment A

87



88



89



Attachment B

90



91



92



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

93



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 

Thru: Mike Tvenge, Deputy City Manager and Lon White, Harbormaster 

Date: October 13, 2016 ~ 
Agenda Item: V. h. Authorization of the First Amendment to Professional Services Contract 

With Windward Project Solutions LLC for Design-Build Development for 
the Channel Transient Float Replacement Project No. 8525 

SUMMARY: This memo recommends Council authorize the first amendment to the professional 
services contract with Windward Project Solutions (WSP) to provide additional administrative services 
for the Channel Transient Float (CTF) Replacement Project, in an amount not-to-exceed $8,500. 

PREVIOUS ACTION: 
• On December 22, 2015, City Manager authorized a professional services contract with Windward 

Project Solutions Inc. for $14,800 to prepare the Request for Proposal (RFP) documents that will 
be used to solicit the CTF project. 

DISCUSSION: In December 2015, WPS was contracted to prepare the RFP for the CTF replacement 
project. The project is being solicited as a design-built project. On September 16, 2016, the RFP was 
advertised publicly. Moving forward, the RFP process involves communications with potential bidders, 
pre-proposal conference and preparation of addendurns as needed. WSP will assist in this process and 
generate guidelines for compliant evaluation of proposals received. Proposals are due on October 27, 
2016. Staffs recommendations to award the project are anticipated to be brought to Council in 
November or early December. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Council may authorize the revised scope of work for an amount not-to-exceed $8,500. This will 

allow the RFP process to move forward, and this is staffs recommendation. 
2) Council may delay or not authorize the revised scope of work. This may delay the RFP process 

and ultimately the CTF project. This is not recommended. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Funds are available in the Harbor Enterprise Fund for the CTF 
Replacement, Capital Project No. 8525. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. h. Memo Page I of2 

94



STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council authorize the first amendment to the 
professional service contract with Windward Project Solutions for continued administrative support for 
the Channel Transient Float Replacement Project in an amount not-to-exceed $8,500. 

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION AND COMMENTS: The City Engineer and 
Harbormaster request the additional services to assist with the administration of the RFP process. The 
original contract amount was within my spending authority, but this amendment will raise the total 
contract amount to a level requiring Council approval. This request is reasonable considering the 
additional work required, and I recommend Council approve the amendment. 

ATTACHMENT: 
Attachment A: Windward Project Solutions Proposal Letter (Dated 9-16-16) 
Attachment B: 2015 Windward Project Solutions Proposal and Purchase Order 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to authorize first amendment to the Professional Service Contract with Windard Project 
Solutions, in an amount not-to-exceed $8,500 with funds from the Harbor Enterprise Fund, 
Capital Project No. 8525 and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of 
the City. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. h. Memo Page 2 of 2 

95



Channel Transient Float | PROPOSAL September 16, 2016 | Page 1 of 2 
www.windwardprojectsolutions.com  | Alaska DBE# 9900716 

PROPOSAL

PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

DATE: September 16, 2016 

CLIENT: Lon White, Harbormaster 
City of Kodiak 
403 Marine Way, Kodiak, AK 99615 

PROJECT: Channel Transient Float (PO# 2017-00000071) 

SERVICES: Design/Build Professional Services 

As requested, the purpose of this proposal is to provide the City with an option for continuation 
of professional services by WPS on the above referenced purchase order, on an as-needed 
basis.  These proposed professional services are currently outside the scope of WPS’s existing 
professional services agreement.   

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

WPS proposes to provide professional services (Administration Services) as necessary to assist 
the City with the Design/Build Request for Proposals, along with overall coordination and 
administration services.   

• Proposal Evaluation Procedures: generate guidelines and forms for City review committee
to ensure consistent, compliant evaluation of proposals.

Estimate: 12 – 20 hours 

• Pre-Proposal Conference: initiate conference call, develop meeting agenda, facilitate
meeting, and prepare meeting minutes.  Option for travel to Kodiak to assist in person.

Estimate: 8 – 16 hours 

• Addenda & Questions: assist with addressing Proposer questions and generate addenda.
Estimate: 12 – 30 hours 

• Coordination: support City staff with coordinating final contract terms and conditions,
budget development, and general project correspondence.

Estimate: 16 – 40 hours 

Attachment A

96



  
 
 
 
  

Channel Transient Float | PROPOSAL September 16, 2016 | Page 2 of 2 
www.windwardprojectsolutions.com  | Alaska DBE# 9900716 

 

PROPOSAL
 

  

 

TIME & MATERIAL BASIS FOR PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK: 

 
Fees: 
 

Design-Build Coordinator, Amanda Wilson  $135.00/ hour 
 

Travel/ Expenses:      actual costs plus 8% mark-up 
 
Recommended Budget, Not to Exceed:   $8,500.00 
 

PURCHASE ORDER SUMMARY: 

 
Existing Purchase Order 

Original: $14,800.00  Actual Billed (Final):  $12,500.00 
 
Additional Services 
        Recommended $  8,500.00 

 
Revised Total Purchase Order:   $21,000.00 

TERMS: 

a) Availability and rates are valid through December, 31st 2018.   
b) WPS recognizes the above scope of services is on a time and material basis, as directed by 

the City; acceptance of this proposal is no guarantee of Work. 
c) No minimum hourly charges apply to the above rates. 
 
  

  

97



Channel Transient Float | PROPOSAL November 12th, 2015 | Page 1 of 3 
PO Box 1269, Dillingham, AK 99576    Office: 907.843.2344     www.windwardprojectsolutions.com 

PROPOSAL

PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

DATE: November 12, 2015 

CLIENT: Lon White, Harbormaster | City of Kodiak 
403 Marine Way, Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

PROJECT: Channel Transient Float Replacement 

SERVICES: Design/Build Professional Services – RFP Development 

INTRODUCTION: 

Windward Project Solutions, LLC (WPS) is pleased to provide the City of Kodiak (City) with the 
following proposal for professional services which may become necessary should the City elect 
to proceed with delivering the Channel Transient Float replacement project by way of a Request 
for Proposals (RFP) and design-build (D/B) contracting method. 

WPS is an Alaskan small business specializing in contract management in the heavy civil and 
maritime sectors.  As comparable with most emerging businesses, the experience and capabilities 
of the firm is primarily based on the owner’s work history and expertise which is particularly 
applicable to design-build contract delivery.  The firm is a certified Disadvantage Business 
Enterprise (DBE # 9900716), insured, and licensed in Alaska with an extensive base of industry 
resources and remote project experience. 

REPRESENTATIVE EXPERIENCE:  

Amanda M. Wilson, owner of WPS, is uniquely qualified to assist the City with implementing 
design-build project delivery.  As the design-builder on five large-scale heavy civil projects, she 
has served in a leadership role at every project phase, including design development through to 
completion of construction and project close out.  Prior to founding WPS, she worked directly for 
contractors as a Project Manager, responsible for overseeing construction operations and 
contract compliance on nearly a dozen publicly-funded projects. 

Amanda adds value by developing cost-conscious, practical solutions based on past lessons 
learned and her knowledge of best practices in D/B.  She has worked on projects ranging in scale 
from $1M to nearly $2B and has established a positive reputation for managing competing 
priorities and collaborating with a variety of stakeholders.  With a B.S. in Construction 
Management, over ten years in the industry, and a proven record for exceeding expectations, 
Amanda is well positioned to serve a role rooted in representing the City’s best interests. 

Attachment B

98



  
 
 
 
  

Channel Transient Float | PROPOSAL November 12th, 2015 | Page 2 of 3 
PO Box 1269, Dillingham, AK 99576    Office: 907.843.2344     www.windwardprojectsolutions.com  

 

PROPOSAL
PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 
WPS proposes to provide professional services necessary to assist the City of Kodiak with 
developing the Design/Build Request for Proposals.  Professional services are anticipated to 
generally include project initiation, coordination, preliminary analysis, preliminary planning, and 
project administration, as required to provide the following tasks and deliverables: 
 

• RFP/ Criteria – Scoping Meeting: engage City stakeholders to obtain and define project 
expectations and establish a baseline for RFP content, contractor selection criteria, and 
project (float) priorities  
  

• Preliminary Planning: including records/data research, conceptual plan sheet(s), 
estimated quantities, design and performance criteria, and list of applicable standards 
and specifications 
 

• Draft Design/Build Request for Proposal: develop and provide a draft deliverable for 
review and comment by City – to include project scope, preliminary plan(s), deliverables, 
and selection criteria for the RFP 
 

• Final Design/Build Request for Proposal: provide final, complete deliverable incorporating 
review comments, for the purpose of soliciting Design-Build proposals   

 
The total value of the above referenced project is assumed to be in the range of $3 million.  The 
described professional services are proposed in alignment with a design-build project of this 
general scale and are intended to fulfill minimum requirements of an RFP, based on standard 
industry practices.  Given the most recent discussions with the City, this proposal assumes the 
final RFP deliverable will rely on existing data and therefore, the following services are excluded 
from this proposal: geotechnical investigations, environmental, permitting, public involvement, 
and legal services. 

FEES FOR PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK: 

Project Coordinator:  WPS to be compensated at a total lump sum fee for the described 
professional services, as required to provide the listed tasks and deliverables, excluding travel 
expenses, and in accordance with the terms stated herein.  In lieu of a lump sum fee, an hourly 
rate of $110.00 applies to this proposal which includes all overhead, profit, and is not subject to 
overtime premiums. 
 
     WPS Lump-Sum Fee:    $12,500.00 
 
 
Travel Expenses: WPS to be reimbursed for all actual costs incurred associated with airfare, 
lodging, and transportation when such expenses are required to perform short-term services in 
Kodiak.  All reimbursable expenses are subject to an 8% administration fee.  Estimated total travel 
expense includes (2) trips to Kodiak. 
     
     Estimated Total Travel Expense:  $ 2,300.00  

99



  
 
 
 
  

Channel Transient Float | PROPOSAL November 12th, 2015 | Page 3 of 3 
PO Box 1269, Dillingham, AK 99576    Office: 907.843.2344     www.windwardprojectsolutions.com  

 

PROPOSAL
 

OPTIONAL SERVICES: 

 
Procurement Services/ Liaison : serve as the primary point of contact during RFP solicitation 
phase, provide project presentation and lead a pre-bid meeting, assist with answering proposer 
questions, and provide guidance on RFP compliance and scoring procedures.  Pricing and terms 
negotiable, based upon final scope of work. 
 
Project/Construction Support Services:  Subject to availability, serve as the City’s 
representative, assisting with the management and administration of the DB contract.   Pricing 
and terms negotiable, based upon final scope of work. 

TERMS: 

a) All responsibilities required of WPS to be performed by Amanda Wilson, unless otherwise 
mutually agreed upon.   

b) Availability and rates are valid through July 15th, 2016.   
c) The contents of this proposal are confidential and contingent upon a mutually agreeable, 

executed agreement, prior to commencement of any services. 
d) An insurance certification detailing coverage included in the provided fee is available upon 

request; additional insurance/endorsements may be subject to an increase in costs.  WPS 
requires all sub-consultants to carry insurance with equal or excess coverage and limits. 

e) WPS does not directly employ licensed engineers, contractors, surveyors, or attorneys and 
such services are excluded from the lump sum fee. 

 
 
 
Thank you for the consideration.   
 

100



S
h

ip
T

o

Harbor Department
403 Marine Way
Kodiak, AK 99615

B
illT

o

City of Kodiak
P.O. Box 1397
Kodiak, AK 99615

Purchase Order
No.       2016-00000108

DATE           12/22/2015

VENDOR                3776 - Windward Project Solutions, LLC

C
o

n
ta

ct

Windward Project Solutions, LLC
PO BOX 1269
Dillingham, AK 99576

PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER MUST APPEAR ON
ALL INVOICES, SHIPPERS, BILL OF LADING AND
CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVER BY
SHIP VIA
FREIGHT TERMS
PAGE           1              of                  1
ORIGINATOR:                         Jimmie Wilson

REFERENCE #

QUANTITY UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT COST TOTAL COST
1.0000 Each Eng & Inspec - Capitalize - RFP document for design/build bids for CTF

replacement
14,800.0000 $14,800.00

TOTAL DUE $14,800.00

Special Instructions

101



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 

Thru: Mike Tvenge, Deputy City Manager ~ 

Date: October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: V. i. Amendment of the Previously Adopted Motion at the September 22, 2016, 
Regular Meeting to Cancel Certain October, November, and December 
Regular Meetings and Schedule Special Meetings 

SUMMARY: Some of the regularly scheduled Council meetings for October, November and December 
were cancelled to reflect the holidays and elected official and staff travel schedules at the September 22, 
2016, regular meeting. After the September 22, 2016, regular meeting, the City Attorney notified the 
City Manager there were schedule changes to the refunding bond signing dates in Seattle, which include 
travel and attendance from the Mayor, City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk during the week 
first week of November. This schedule alters the need to cancel the regular meeting of November 10 and 
hold a special meeting on November 3. This schedule change requires an amendment to the previously 
adopted motion to cancel regular and special meetings that were made at the September 22, 2016, 
regular meeting. Staff recommends Council amend the adopted motion to reestablish the November 10 
regular meeting and cancel the November 3, 2016, special meeting. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: The City Council cancels regular meetings and schedules special 
meetings from time to time due to travel and other scheduling conflicts. 

LEGAL: Kodiak City Code identifies regular meetings are held on the second and fourth Thursdays of 
each month. If a regular meeting must be cancelled, a special meeting may be scheduled. The attendance 
requirements do not apply to special meetings. 

Clerk's Note: The following motion was adopted at the September 22 regular meeting: move to cancel 

the October 27, November 10, November 24, and December 22, 2016, regular meetings and schedule a special 

meeting/or November 3, 2016, and authorize the City Manager to schedule additional special meetings if needed. 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to amend the previously adopted motion at the September 22, 2016, regular meeting by 
striking the November 3, 2016, special meeting and inserting the November 10, 2016, regular 
meeting. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. i. Memo Page I of I 

102



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

103



To: 

From: 

Date: 

DRAFT 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

Debra Marlar, City Clerk fJ v\t) 
October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: V. j. Certification of Election 

SUMMARY: The City of Kodiak held a regular election October 4, 2016, and voters cast ballots for the 
two three-year City Council positions and voted on Proposition No. 1 Providing for Collective 
Bargaining for the Employees of the City of Kodiak. The Canvass Board met October 12, 2016, to tally 
the votes of the admissible questioned and absentee ballots, together with votes counted on election 
night. The final results of the October 4, 2016, Municipal City election were: 

City Council-Two Three-Year Terms 

Charles Davidson ............................ .. 
John Whiddon ......... .......................... . 
Write-Ins .......................................... .. 

Proposition No. 1 

Yes ................................................... .. 
No ..................................................... .. 

Of the 3,598 registered City voters, __ cast eligible City ballots, for a __ % voter turnout, which is 
__ % higher/lower than last year. 

NOTES/ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Certificate of Election 
Attachment B: Canvass Report of Final Results 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to certify the results of the October 4, 2016, regular election and declare Charles Davidson 
and John Whiddon elected to the City Council for three-year terms and that Proposition No 1 
nassed/failed. 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item V. j. Memo Page I of I 

104



DRAFT 
CITY OF KODIAK, ALASKA

2016 Municipal Election
Certificate of Election

WE, the undersigned MAYOR and CITY CLERK of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, do 
hereby certify that the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, in accordance with KCC 
2.28.015, have received the report of the Canvass Board for the 2016 Municipal 
Election, held on the 4th day of October 2016 and have determined that the election 
was validly held and have certified the following results: 

Councilmember, two three-year terms 
Number of votes cast: ..............................  

Candidates Votes Received 
Charles Davidson ................................... 
John Whiddon ........................................ 
Write-ins ................................................. 

Proposition No. 1 Providing for Collective Bargaining for Employees of the 
City of Kodiak 

Number of votes cast: .......................................  

Yes ....................................................................  
No .....................................................................  

By the authority vested in us by the laws of the State of Alaska and the Charter 
and Code of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, we do hereby affix our hand and seal. 

MAYOR 

CITY CLERK 
DATED this 13th day of October 2016. 

Attachment A

105



DRAFT 
October 4, 2016, Regular Election 

Preliminary Results 

(Harbor) (Teen) Admissible 
  32/820 32/825 Questioned Total Percent 

REGISTERED VOTERS/BALLOTS CAST 

REGISTERED VOTERS 1,827 1,771 3,598 

BALLOTS CAST 377 391 768 

VOTES CAST 

City Council, Two Three-Year Terms 

Charles Davidson 261 301 

John Whiddon 260 234 

Write-ins 14 28 

Total 

Proposition No. 1 Providing for Collective Bargaining for the Employees for the City of Kodiak 

Yes 159 210 

No 193 160 

We, the undersigned Canvass Board for the 2016 City of Kodiak Municipal Election held October 4, 
2016, hereby certify that the above is a true and correct statement of election results.  

Dated this 12th day of October 2016. 

Deborah Clifford-Tvenge Gabriel Saravia  

Renee Darrenkamp Pat Szabo 

Attachment B

106



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OATH OF OFFICE 

107



OCTOBER 13, 2016 
Agenda Item X. Memo Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Date: October 13, 2016 

Agenda Item: X. Oath of Office 

SUMMARY: KCC 2.28.080 requires elected officials to take and subscribe to the Oath of Office. The 
City Clerk will now administer the Oath of Office to the City’s re-elected officials. 

ATTACHMENT: 
Attachment A: Oath of Office 

108



CITY OF KODIAK, ALASKA

Oath of Office
October 13, 2016 

I, __________, do solemnly affirm that I will support the Constitution and 

laws of the United States, the laws of the State of Alaska, the ordinances of the 

City of Kodiak, and that I will faithfully and honestly perform the duties of 

_______, so help me God. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

Elected Official’s Signature 
ATTEST: 

Debra L. Marlar, City Clerk 

Attachment A

109


	October 13, 2016, Regular Meeting Agenda
	Approval of Minutes of the September 22, 2016, Regular Council Meeting
	Persons To Be Heard
	a.	Proclamation: Filipino American National History Month

	Unfinished Business
	a.	Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1359, Adopting Kodiak City Code 8.96.010, Discharge of Firearms and Other Dangerous Weapons Prohibited; Exceptions, and Amending Kodiak City Code 1.12.040, Disposition of Offenses—Fine Schedule, to Enact a Prohibition on Discharging Firearms in the City Subject to Certain Exceptions and a Penalty for Its Violation

	New Business
	a.	First Reading, Ordinance No. 1360, Amending Kodiak City Code 3.12.020, Limitation on City Manager’s Authority; Kodiak City Code 3.12.030, Open Market Procedures; Kodiak City Code 3.12.040, Advertising for Bids; and Kodiak City Code 3.12.090, Purchase, Contract, or Sale Valid When—Prohibited When; to Increase the Limit on the City Manager’s Contracting Authority From $15,000 to $35,000 and to Increase the Limit on Use of Open Market Contracting Procedures to $50,000
	b.	Resolution No. 2016–35, Accepting Funding From the State of Alaska Harbor Facilities Grant Program
	c.	Resolution No. 2016–36, Accepting a Code Blue Phase 16 Grant From the Southern Region EMS Council for Purchase of an Ambulance and Transferring $20,010 From the FY2017 General Fund Balance to the General Capital Project Fund - Ambulance Replacement Project No. 4047
	d.	Resolution No. 2016–37, Authorizing the Kodiak Hockey League to Sell Concessions and Offer Skate Sharpening to the Community at Baranof Park
	e.	Resolution No. 2016–38, Authorizing Payment for Two Additional Fiscal Year 2017 Nonprofit Organization Grants
	f.	Resolution No. 2016–39, Appropriating $30,550 From the Water Capital Improvement Unassigned Fund Balance to the UV Water Treatment Facility Project No.03-14/7023 and Authorizing a Professional Services Contract for Updating the UV Reactors to the 2012 Validation Status and Completing New Programming of the Operating System
	g.	Authorization of Up Fitting of Recently Purchased Police Department Vehicles
	h.	Authorization of the First Amendment to Professional Services Contract With Windward Project Solutions LLC for Design-Build Development for the Channel Transient Float Replacement Project No. 8525
	i.	Amendment of the Previously Adopted Motion at the September 22, 2016, Regular Meeting to Cancel Certain October, November, and December Regular Meetings and Schedule Special Meetings
	j.	Certification of Election

	Oath Of Office



